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OBJ.: 	Remitir solicitud de extradición que 

indica. 

REF.: 	Nota N° 058-20 de la Embajada de 
EE.UU. de América, de 04.02.19. 

SANTIAGO, 10 FEB. 2020  

DE: DIRECTOR GENERAL DE ASUNTOS JURÍDICOS SUBROGANTE DEL MINISTERIO 
DE RELACIONES EXTERIORES 

A : SEÑOR SECRETARIO DE LA EXCMA. CORTE SUPREMA DE JUSTICIA 

Mediante la Nota de la referencia, la Embajada de los Estados Unidos de América remitió a 
esta Dirección la solicitud de extradición del ciudadano Jean-Daniel BRAVO GIDI. 

A tal efecto, cúmpleme remitir a US. la Nota citada en la referencia, así como un legajo con 
los antecedentes en que se fundamenta dicha petición, todo lo cual se adjunta al presente oficio. 

En virtud de lo expuesto precedentemente, agradeceré a US. tenga a bien disponer las 
medidas que estime pertinentes para la tramitación de esta solicitud, en conformidad con el Tratado 
de Extradición entre Chile y Estados Unidos de América, suscrito en Washington el 05.06.2013, 
publicado en el Diario Oficial de 18.04.2017, y demás disposiciones legales aplicables en la especie. 

Saluda a US., 
...) etACro+  

4 c • 	, p 
"%1 DIRECTOR cn 52 GENERAL DE % t fr ASUNTOS —I ' 

to JURIDICOS .,..rn 
Y SUBROGANTE CY 

lY * 5 -41), 

Director 

L-1 C.. 	(.7("Lti 

ÁLVÁTRO ARÉ VA C NICH 
neral e Asu os Jur Hicos Subrog nte 

DISTRIBUCION: 
1.- 	EXCMA. CORTE SUPREMA DE JUSTICIA, con anexo 
2.- RR.EE. (ARCHIGRAL) 

RR.EE. (SUBSEC), info 
4.- MINISTERIO PUBLICO (UCIEX), info 
5.- RR.EE. (DIGEJUR), archivo 



oftWearbmila 
0 5 FEB 2020 
JESUS SOTO 

OFICINA DE PARTES 

RECEPCIÓN SECRETARÍA 

0 6 FEB 25211 	13 

DIRECCIÓN GENERAL DE ASUNTOS JURÍDICOS 
MINISTERIO RR.EE. 

11 
,.. -EXecCA:c1 res 

No. 058-20 

(Traducción No Oficial) 

La Embajada de los Estados Unidos de América saluda atentamente al 

Ministerio de Relaciones Exteriores de Chile — Dirección de Asuntos Jurídicos — y 

tiene el honor de solicitar su atención con el caso de Jean-Daniel Bravo Gidi. 

El Gobierno de los Estados Unidos solicita formalmente la extradición de 

Jean-Daniel BRAVO GIDI, alias Danny, alias Light, alias Kurohigexyonko, en 

virtud del tratado de Extradición celebrado entre el Gobierno de los Estados 

Unidos de América y la República de Chile, firmado el 5 de junio de 2013, y que 

entró en vigor el 14 de Diciembre de 2016. (el Tratado de "Extradición"). 

Se estima que BRAVO GIDI se encuentra en Chile con un paradero 

conocido para las autoridades de cumplimiento de la ley. 

BRAVO GIDI es buscado para enfrentar juicio en los Estados Unidos por 

los cargos relativos a explotación sexual de menores y pornografía infantil. 

BRAVO GIDI fue formalizado con cargos criminales en causa número 19-

cr-20050, incoada el 24 de Enero de 2019 en la Corte del Distrito Este de Michigan 

en los Estados Unidos con los siguientes cargos: 
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Cargo uno — participación en una empresa de explotación de menores, en 

contravención al Título 18, del Código de los Estados Unidos, Secciones 2251, 

2422(b), y 2252A(g); 

Cargo dos — conspiración para producir pornografía infantil, en 

contravención al Título 18, Código de los Estados Unidos, Secciones 2251(a) y 

2251(c); 

Cargo tres — producción e intento de producción de pornografía infantil, en 

contravención al Título 18, Código de los Estados Unidos, Secciones 2251(a), 

2251(e), y 2; 

Cargo cuatro — provocación de un menor, en contravención al Título 18, 

Código de los Estados Unidos, Secciones 2422(b) y 2; 

Cargo cinco — conspiración para la distribución de pornografía infantil, en 

contravención al Código de los Estados Unidos, Título 18, Secciones 2252A(a)(2) 

y 2252A(b)(1); y 

Cargo seis — conspiración y acceso para ver pornografía infantil, en 

contravención al Título 18, Código de los Estados Unidos, Secciones 2252A(5)(b) 

y 2252A(b)(2). 
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Basado en una versión anterior del documento acusatorio, la Corte de 

Distrito Este de Michigan emitió una orden de búsqueda para la detención de 

BRAVO GIDI el 26 de Octubre de 2018. Esta orden está vigente para la detención 

de BRAVO GIDI bajo los cargos contenidos en la formalización del 24 de Enero 

de 2019. 

Un resumen detallado de los hechos del caso se adjuntan como parte de la 

evidencia de apoyo. 

Los cargos contra BRAVO GIDI son punibles bajo las leyes de los Estados 

Unidos con privación de libertad superior a un año y se encuentran comprendidas 

en el artículo 2 del Tratado de Extradición. 

Los Estados Unidos certifican que los delitos o ejecución de las penas que 

pueden ser impuestas caen bajo las normas de prescripción por el transcurso del 

tiempo en los Estados Unidos. 

Una explicación más detallada sobre las sanciones probables y las normas de 

prescripción son acompañadas en la evidencia adjunta. 

De conformidad con el artículo 15 del Tratado de Extradición, los Estados 

Unidos solicitan la incautación de todos los artículos, documentos relativos a las 

ofensas de cargo. 



-4- 

BRAVO GIDI es ciudadano de los Estados Unidos, nacido el 26 de Junio de 

1991, en Chile. Una fotografía de BRAVO GIDI se incluye en la documentación 

de apoyo. 

La Embajada de los Estados Unidos de América se vale de esta oportunidad 

para reiterar al Ministerio de Relaciones Exteriores — Dirección de Asuntos 

Jurídicos — las seguridades de nuestra más alta y distinguida consideración. 

Embajada de los Estados Unidos de América, 

Santiago, Febrero 04 de 2020. 



No. 058-20 

The Embassy of the United States of America presents its compliments to 

the Ministry of Foreign Affairs of the Republic of Chile — Directorate of Judicial 

Affairs — and has the honor to bring to your attention the case of Jean-Daniel Bravo 

Gidi. 

The Government of the United States of America formally requests the 

extradition of Jean-Daniel BRAVO GIDI, alias Danny, alias Light, alias 

Kurohigexyonko, pursuant to the Extradition Treaty between the Government of 

the United States of America and the Government of the Republic of Chile, signed 

June 5, 2013, and entered in force December 14, 2016 (the "Extradition Treaty"). 

BRAVO GIDI is believed to be located in Chile at a location known to law 

enforcement authorities. 

BRAVO GIDI is wanted to stand trial in the United States for charges 

related to sexual exploitation of children and child pornography. BRAVO GIDI is 

charged by indictment in criminal case number 19-cr-20050, filed on January 24, 

2019, in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Michigan with: 

DIPLOMATIC NOTE 
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Count One — participation in a child exploitation enterprise, in violation of 

Title 18, United States Code, Sections 2251, 2422(b), and 2252A(g); 

Count Two — conspiracy to produce child pornography, in violation of Title 

18, United States Code, Sections 2251(a) and 2251(c); 

Count Three — production and attempted production of child pornography, in 

violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 2251(a), 2251(e), and 2; 

Count Four — enticement of a minor, in violation of Title 18, United States 

Code, Sections 2422(b) and 2; 

Count Five — conspiracy to distribute child pornography, in violation of Title 

18, United States Code, Sections 2252A(a)(2) and 2252A(b)(1); and 

Count Six — conspiracy to access with intent to view child pornography, in 

violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 2252A(5)(b) and 2252A(b)(2). 

Based on an earlier version of the charging document, the United States 

District Court for the Eastern District of Michigan issued a warrant for the arrest of 

BRAVO GIDI on October 26, 2018. This warrant remains valid to apprehend 

BRAVO GIDI for the charges contained in the January 24, 2019, indictment. 
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A detailed summary of the facts of this case is included in the supporting 

documentation. 

The charges against BRAVO GIDI are punishable under the laws of the 

United States by deprivation of liberty for a period of more than one year and are 

covered under Article 2 of the Extradition Treaty. 

The United States certifies that neither the offenses nor execution of any 

penalty which may be imponed related to the offenses are barred by the applicable 

laws of the United States regarding lapse of time. 

More detailed explanations of the applicable punishments and the applicable 

statute of limitations are provided in the supporting documentation. 

In accordance with Article 15 of the Extradition Treaty, the United States 

requests the seizure and surrender of all items, including articles, documents, and 

evidence relating to the offenses charged. 

BRAVO GIDI is a citizen of Chile, born on June 26, 1991, in Chile. A 

photo of BRAVO GIDI is included in the supporting documentation. 
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The Embassy of the United States of America avails itself of this 

opportunity to renew to the Ministry of Foreign Affairs of the Republic of Chile — 

Directorate of Judicial Affairs — the assurances of its highest consideration. 

Embassy of the United States of America, 

Santiago, Febrero 04, 2020. 
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oro ala to laibom the%e pre5entS Iban. come, 	Ming: 

tertdp Tha t  Frances Chang 	 whose name is signed 

to the accompanying paper, is now, and was at the time of signing the same, 

Associate Director, Office of International Affairs, Criminal Division, 

United States, Department offustice, Washington, D.C. 

	 duly commissioned and qualified. 

3111 	 bubereoC 1,  William P. Barr 

Attorney General of the United States, 
have hereunto caused the Seal of the 
Department of Justice to be affixed and 
my name to be attested by the Director/ 
Deputy Director, Office of International 
Affairs, Criminal Division, of the said 
Department on the day and year first 
aboye written. 

Attorney General 

By 
Director/Deputy Director, Office ofjlnternational Affairs, 

Criminal Division 
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nces Chang 
Associate Director 
Office of International Affairs 
Criminal Division 
U.S. Department of Justice 

• CERTIFICATE 

I, Frances Chang, Associate Director, Office of International Affairs, Criminal Division, 

U.S. Department of Justice, United States of America, do hereby certify that attached hereto is the 

original affidavit, with attachments and translation, of April N. Russo, Assistant U.S. Attorney, 

U.S. Attorney' s Office for the Eastern District of Michigan, which was sworn to before Magistrate 

Judge R. Steven Whalen, Eastern District of Michigan, on April 3, 2019, and which is offered in 

support of the request for the extradition of JEAN-DANIEL BRAVO GIDI from Chile. 

True copies of these documents are maintained in the official files of the U.S. Department 

of Justice in Washington, D.C. 

161 /01  2019 
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U.S. 	ICE 
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Case No. 19-CR-20050 

AFFIDAVIT IN SUPPORT OF  
REQUEST FOR EXTRADITION 

I, April N. Russo, being duly sworn, depose and state: 

1. I am a citizen of the United States and a resident of the state of Michigan. 

2. I graduated from University of Virginia School of Law in 2011. 

3. From November of 2014 to the present, I have been employed by the United States 

Department of Justice as an Assistant United States Attorney for the Eastern District of 

Michigan. As an Assistant U.S. Attorney for the Eastern District of Michigan, I am 

responsible for the preparation and prosecution of criminal cases against those persons 

engaged in criminal violations of the laws of the United States. During my practice as an 

Assistant United States Attorney, I have become knowledgeable about the criminal laws and 

procedures of the United States. Based upon my training and experience, I am an expert in 

the criminal laws and procedures of the United States. 

4. In the course of my duties, I have become familiar with the charges and evidente in the case 

of United States v. Jean-Daniel Bravo Gidi, Case No. 19-CR-20050 (also referred to case 

4:19-CR-20050 and 2:18-MJ-30569). These charges follow an investigatio  y die 

Bureau of Investigation (FBI) into the activities of the members of a chillengloi 
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• 	UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
EASTERN DISTRICT OF MICHIGAN 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

v. 

JEAN-DANIEL BRAVO GIDI 

of which Jean-Daniel Bravo Gidi (GIDI) was a member. 

deral 



• 	I THE GRAND JURY PROCESS 

5. Under U.S. law, a criminal complaint can be filed in a U.S. District Court for the purpose of 

authorizing the arrest of a person believed to have committed a crime or crimes. Before a 

criminal complaint can be filed and an arrest warrant issued, a judge must determine whether 

law enforcement officers have submitted to the Court evidence sufficient to establish that a 

crime has been committed and that the subject of the complaint committed the crime. At 

any time alter the issuance of a complaint, a prosecutor may present evidence to a grand jury 

to seek an indictment. Under the laws of the United States, a criminal prosecution may be 

commenced by a grand jury on its own decision to return and file an indictment with the 

Clerk of the U.S. District Court. The grand jury is an independent body that is impaneled 

and supervised by the judicial branch of the U.S. government. A grand jury is composed 

of at least 16 and no more than 23 people whom the U.S. District Court selects at random 

from the residente of that district. 

6. The purpose of the grand jury is to view the evidence of crimes presented to it by U.S. law 

enforcement authorities. After independently viewing this evidence, each member of the 

grand jury must determine if there is probable cause to believe that a crime has been 

committed, and that the particular defendant committed the crime. A grand jury retums an 

indictment when at least 12 grand jurors have voted in favor of an indictment. An 

indictment is a formal document that charges the defendant with a crime or crimes, describes 

the specific laws that the defendant is accused of violating, and describes the acts of the 

defendant that are alleged to be violations of the law. After the grand jury returns the 

indictment, a warrant for the defendant's arrest generally is issued by the Clerk of the Court 

upon the instruction of a U.S. district or magistrate judge. 

2 



II. THE CHARGES AND PERTINENT LAW 

7. On October 26, 2018, a criminal complaint was filed in the United States District 

Court for the Eastern District of Michigan, charging GIDI with violating United States 

child exploitation laws. On January 24, 2019, a grand jury sitting in the Eastern District of 

Michigan retumed an indictment, charging GIDI with the following offenses: in Count 

One, with participation in a child exploitation enterprise, in violation of Title 18, United 

States Code, Sections 2251, 2422(b), and 2252A(g); in Count Two, with conspiracy to 

produce child pornography, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 2251(a) 

and 2251(e); in Count Three, with production and attempted production of child 

pornography, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 2, 2251(a), and 225I(e); 

in Count Four, with enticement of a minor, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, 

Sections 2 and 2422(b); in Count Five, with conspiracy to distribute child pornography, in 

violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 2252A(a)(2) and 2252A(b)(1); and in 

Count Six, with conspiracy to access with intent to view child pornography, in violation of 

Tile 18, United States Code, Sections 2252A(5)(b) and 2252A(b)(2). The Indictment also 

contains a forfeiture allegation citing Title 18, United States Code, Sections 2253 and 2428. 

GIDI has not been previously prosecuted, convicted, or ordered to serve a sentence for the 

offenses for which extradition is sought. 

8. The relevant portions of the applicable statutes are attached to this affidavit as Exhibit A. 

Each of these statutes was duly enacted and in force at the time the offenses were 

committed and at the time the Indictment was returned, and they rema in in full force and 

effect as to the conduct charged. The relevant criminal offenses charged in the Indictment 

3 



• constitute felonies under the laws of the United States. 

9. I have also included as part of Exhibit A the relevant portion of Title 18, United States 

Code, Section 3299, which provides that there is no statute of limitation for any of the 

crimes charged in the Indictment. 

10. I have thoroughly reviewed the applicable statute of limitations, and the prosecution of the 

charges in this case is not barred by the statute of limitations. 

11. Based on the charges in the complaint, on October 26, 2018, the U.S District Court for the 

Eastern District of Michigan issued a warrant for the arrest of GIDI. This arrest warrant 

remains valid and executable. 

12. It is the practice of the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of Michigan to retain 

original indictments and arrest warrants and file them with the records of the Court. 

Therefore, I have obtained certified copies of the Indictment, criminal complaint, and arrest 

warrant from the Clerk of the Court and have attached them to this affidavit as Exhibit B, 

Exhibit C, and Exhibit D, respectively. 

13. GIDI is charged in Counts One, Two, Five and Six of the Indictment with the offense of 

conspiracy. Under U.S. law, a conspiracy is an agreement to violate other criminal 

statutes. In other words, under U.S. law, the act of combining and agreeing with one or 

more persons to violate U.S. law is a crime in and of itself. Such an agreement need not 

be formal and may be simply a verbal or non-verbal understanding. A conspiracy is 

deemed to be a partnership for criminal purposes in which each member or participant 

becomes the agent or partner of every other member. A person may become a member of 

a conspiracy without full knowledge of all of the details of the unlawful scheme or the 

names and identities of all of the other alleged co-conspirators. Consequently, if a 

4 



• defendant has an understanding of the unlawful nature of a plan and knowingly and 

willfully joins in that plan on at least one occasion, that is sufficient to convict him/her of 

conspiracy, even if he/she had not participated before and even if he/she played only a 

minor part. Sim larly, a defendant need not be aware of all of the acts of his/her co-

conspirators in order to be held hable for these acts, provided that he/she is a knowing 

member of the conspiracy, and the acts of the co-conspirators were foreseeable and within 

the scope of the conspiracy. 

14. Title 18, United States Code, Section 2, as charged in Counts Three and Four, provides that 

whoever commands, procures, assists in, or causes the commission of a crime shall be held 

accountable and punished in the same manner as the principal, or the person who actually 

carried out the task. This means that the guilt of the defendant may also be proved even if 

he did not personally perform every act involved in the commission of the crime charged. 

The law recognizes that, ordinarily, anything a person can do for himself may also be 

accomplished through direction of another person as an agent, or by acting together with, 

or under the direction of, another person or persons in a joint effort. So, if the acts or 

conduct of an agent, employee or other associate of the defendant were willfully directed or 

authorized by the defendant, or if the defendant aided and abetted another person by 

willfully joining together with that person in the commission of a crime, then the law holds 

the defendant responsible for the conduct of that other person just as though the defendant 

had engaged in such conduct himself. Citing the statute does not constitute a separate 

charge against the defendant; rather it provides an additional theory of criminal liability 

under which the defendant may be found guilty at trial. 

15. Count One of the Indictment charges GIDI with participating in a child exploitation 

5 



. enterprise. Regarding the offense in Count One, the United States must show that GIDI 

violated a child exploitation statute as a part of a series of felony violations constituting 

three or more separate incidents between the dates of October 22, 2016, and November 29, 

2018; that the series of felony violations involved more than one minor victim; and that the 

defendant committed the series of felony violations in concert with three or more other 

persons. Under United States law, Counts Two through Six are all felony child 

exploitation statutes. The maximum penalty for this offense is life imprisonment, a fine of 

US$250,000, and a life term of supervised release. 

16. Count Two of the Indictment charges GIDI with conspiracy to produce child pornography. 

Regarding the offense in Count Two, the United States must show that GIDI and one or 

more other persons reached an agreement to, or conspired to, commit the crime of 

production of child pornography. The maximum penalty for this offense is thirty years 

imprisonment, a fine of US$250,000, and a life term of supervised release. 

17. Count Three of the Indictment charges GIDI with the crime of attempted production and/or 

production of child pornography of victim MV-13, or aiding and abetting this offense. 

Regarding the offense in Count Three, the United States must show that a person or 

persons employed, used, persuaded, enticed, or coerced the named minor to engage in 

sexually expl.  cit conduct for the purpose of producing a visual depiction of that conduct; 

and that the person or persons knew or had reason to know that the visual depiction would 

be transmitted using any means or facility of interstate commerce; or that the visual 

depiction was transmitted using any means or facility of interstate commerce; or that the 

visual depiction was produced or transmitted using materials that were mailed, shipped, or 

transported in or affecting interstate commerce by any means, including by computer. 

6 



• Under United States law, the term "minor" means any person under the age of 18 years old. 

It is not necessary that the Government prove that the person or persons targeting the minor 

knew that the victim was a minor. It is also not necessary that the Government prove that 

the person or persons targeting the minor took the pictures or recorded the videos. The 

term "for the purpose or means that the person acted with the intent to create visual 

depictions of sexually explicit conduct and that the person knew the character and content 

of the visual depictions. The term "sexually explicit conduct" includes actual or simulated 

masturbation or lascivious display of the genitals. In deciding whether an exhibition is 

lascivious, United States law requires the jury to consider: (1) whether the focal point of 

the visual depiction is the child's genitalia or pubic arca; (2) whether the setting of the 

visual depiction is sexually suggestive, i.e., in a place or pose generally associated with 

sexual activity; (3) whether the child is depicted in an unnatural pose, or in inappropriate 

attire, considering the age of the child; (4) whether the child is fully or partially clothed, or 

nude; (5) whether the depiction suggests sexual coyness or a willingness to engage in 

sexual activity; and (6) whether the visual depiction is designed or intended to elicit a 

sexual response in the viewer. This list is not exhaustive and an image or video need not 

satisfy any single factor to be deemed lascivious. The fact finder decides whether it is 

lascivious based on the overall content. The term "means or facility of interstate 

commerce" includes the internet or the telephone. The phrase "affecting interstate 

commerce" means having at least a minimal effect upon interstate commerce. The 

maximum penalty for this offense is thirty years imprisonment, a fine of US$250,000, and 

a life term of supervised release. 

18. Count Four of the Indictment charges GIDI with the online enticement of a minor, or 

7 



• a d ng and abetting this offense. Regarding the offense in Count Four, the United States 

must show that that a person or persons knowingly persuaded or enticed an individual 

under the age of 18 to engage in unlawful sexual activity; that the person or persons used a 

means or facility of interstate commerce to do so; and that the person or persons knew the 

individual was under the age of 18. Under United States law, "unlawful sexual activity" 

includes production of child pornography. It is not necessary that the Government prove 

that the sexual activity actually occurred. "Using a means or facility of interstate 

commerce" includes using the internet or telephone. Unlike the production of child 

pornography as described aboye, the United States must show that the defendant knew the 

victim was a minor for this count. The maximum penalty for this offense is life 

imprisonment, a fine of US$250,000, and a life term of supervised release. 

19. Count Five of the Indictment charges GIDI conspiracy to distribute child pornography. 

Regarding the offense in Count Five, the United States must show that GIDI and one or 

more other persons reached an agreement to, or conspired to, comm t the crime of 

distribution of child pornography. Here the United States must show that a person or 

persons agreed or conspired to distribute child pornography; that the person or persons 

knew that the material was child pornography; and that the child pornography was, using 

any means or facility of interstate commerce, to be shipped or transponed in or affecting 

interstate commerce by any means, including by computer. The maximum penalty for 

this offense is twenty years imprisonment, a fine of US$250,000, and a life term of 

supervised release. 

20. Count Six of the Indictment charges GIDI with conspiracy to access with intent to view 

child pornography. Regarding the offense in Count Six, the United States must show that a 
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• person or persons agreed or conspired to, commit the crime of access with intent to view 

child pomography. The United States must show that a person or persons agreed or 

conspired to knowingly access with intent to view any material that contained an image of 

child pomography; that the person or persons knew the material contained child 

pomography; and that the image of child pomography was to be transported using any 

means or facility of interstate commerce, including by computer, or produced using 

materials that had been mailed, or shipped or transported in or affecting interstate 

commerce by any means, including by computer. The maximum penalty for this offense 

is twenty years imprisonment, a fine of US$250,000, and a life term of supervised release. 

21. For both Counts Five and Six, the term "child pomography" means any visual depiction, 

including video, photograph, or picture, of sexually explicit conduct where: the production 

of such visual depiction involved the use of a minor engaging in sexually explicit conduct. 

The tercos "visual depiction," "sexually explicit conduct," "means or facility of interstate 

commerce," and "minor" all have the same definitions as those that are provided aboye. 
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• III. SUMMARY OF THE FACTS  

22. Attached as Exhibit D is the original affidavit of FBI Special Agent Adam Christensen, 

which provides additional information on the criminal activities and identification of GIDI. 

23. Based on my review of Special Agent Christensen's affidavit and the evidence in this case, 

I attest that the evidence indicates that GIDI is guilty of the offenses for which extradition 

is sought. 

Ir\ 

April N. Russo 
Assistant U.S. Attomey 
Eastem District of Michigan 

SIGNED AND SUBSCRIBED TO BEFORE ME 
THIS 3rd DAY OF April, 2019 

HON. R. Steven Whalen 
U.S. Magistrate Judge 
Eastem District of Michigan 
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• 	EXHIBIT LIST 

Exhibit A 	Applicable Statutes 

Exhibit B 	Certified copy of the Indictment, dated January 24, 2019 

Exhibit C 	Certified copy of the criminal complaint, dated October 26, 2018 

Exhibit D 	Certified copy of the arrest warrant, dated October 26, 2018 

Exhibit E 	Affidavit of Federal Bureau of Investigation Special Agent Adam Christensen 

Attachment 1 Chilean national identity card of JEAN-DANIEL BRAVO GIDI 



e 	Exhibit A 

Applicable Statutes 



Exhibit A contains the applicable portions of statutes describing the offenses with which Jean-
Daniel BRAVO GIDI, is charged, the statute of limitations, and the penalties he faces if convicted. 
Ellipses are used to indicate portions of the statutes that are omitted because these portions do not 
apply to the case against BRAVO GIDI. 
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STATUTES 

Title 18, United States Code ("U.S.C.") § 2. Principals 

(a) Whoever commits an offense against the United States or aids, abets, counsels, 
commands,induces or procures its commission, is punishable as a principal. 

(b) Whoever willfully causes an act to be done which if directly performed by him or 
anotherwould be an offense against the United States, is punishable as a principal. 

Title 18, U.S.C. § 2252A. Certain activities relating to material constituting or containing 
child pornography 

(a) Any person who-- . . 

(2) knowingly receives or distributes— 

(A) any child pornography that has been mailed, or using any means or facility of 
interstateor foreign commerce shipped or transported in or affecting interstate or foreign 
commerce by any means, including by computer; or 

(B) any material that contains child pomography that has been mailed, or using any 
meansor facility of interstate or foreign commerce shipped or transported in or affecting 
interstate or foreign commerce by any means, including by computer; . 

(5) either— . . 

(B) knowingly possesses, or knowingly accesses with intent to view, any book, magazine, 
periodical, film, videotape, computer disk, or any other material that contains an image of child 
pornography that has been mailed, or shipped or transported using any means or facility of 
interstate or foreign commerce or in or affecting interstate or foreign commerce by any means, 
including by computer, or that was produced using materials that have been mailed, or shipped or 
transported in or affecting interstate or foreign commerce by any means, including by computer; 
(b) 

(1) 	Whoever violates, or attempts or conspires to violate, paragraph (1), (2), (3), (4), or 
(6) of subsection (a) shall be fined under this title and imprisoned not less than 5 years and 
not more than 20 years, but, if such person has a prior conviction under this chapter, section 
1591, chapter 71, chapter 109A, or chapter 117, or under section 920 of title 10 (article 120 
of the Uniform Code of Military Justice), or under the laws of any State relating to 
aggravated sexual abuse, sexual abuse, or abusive sexual conduct involving a minor or 
ward, or the production, possession, receipt, mailing, sale, distribution, shipment, or 
transportation of child pomography, or sex trafficking of children, such person shall be 
fined under this title and imprisoned for not less than 15 years nor more than 40 years. 

(2) 	Whoever violates, or attempts or conspires to violate, subsection (a)(5) shall be 
finad under this title or imprisoned not more than 10 years, or both, but, if any image of 



• child pornography involved in the offense involved a prepubescent minor or a minor who 
had not attained 12 years of age, such person shall be fined under this title and imprisoned 
for not more than 20 years, or if such person has a prior conviction under this chapter, 
chapter 71, chapter 109A, or chapter 117, or under section 920 of title 10 (article 120 of 
the Uniform Code of Military Justice), or under the laws of any State relating to aggravated 
sexual abuse, sexual abuse, or abusive sexual conduct involving a minor or ward, or the 
production, possession, receipt, mailing, sale, distribution, shipment, or transportation of 
child pomography, such person shall be fined under this title and imprisoned for not less 
than 10 years nor more than 20 years (g) Child Exploitation Enterprises.— 

(1) Whoever engages in a child exploitation enterprise shall be fined under this title 
and imprisoned for any term of years not less than 20 or for life. 

(2) A person engages in a child exploitation enterprise for the purposes of this section 
if the person violates section 1591, section 1201 if the victim is a minor, or chapter 109A 
(involving a minor victim), 110 (except for section 2257 and 2257A), or 117 (involving a 
minor victim), as a part of a series of felony violations constituting three or more separate 
incidents and involving more than one victim, and commits those offenses in concert with 
three or more other persons. 

Title 18, U.S.C. § 2251. Sexual Exploitation of Children 

(a) Any person who employs, uses, persuades, induces, entices, or coerces any minor to engage in, 
or who has a minor assist any other person to engage in, or who transports any minor in or affecting 
interstate or foreign commerce, or in any Territory or Possession of the United States, with the 
intent that such minor engage in, any sexually explicit conduct for the purpose of producing any 
visual depiction of such conduct or for the purpose of transmitting a live visual depiction of such 
conduct, shall be punished as provided under subsection (e), if such person knows or has reason to 
know that such visual depiction will be transported or transmitted using any means or facility of 
interstate or foreign commerce or in or affecting interstate or foreign commerce or mailed, if that 
visual depiction was produced or transmitted using materials that have been mailed, shipped, or 
transported in or affecting interstate or foreign commerce by any means, including by computer, 
or if such visual depiction has actually been transported or transmitted using any means or facility 
of interstate or foreign commerce or in or affecting interstate or foreign commerce or mailed. . 

(e) Any individual who violates, or attempts or conspires to violate, this section shall be fined under 
this title and imprisoned not less than 15 years nor more than 30 years, but if such person has one 
prior conviction under this chapter, section 1591, chapter 71, chapter 109A, or chapter 117, or 
under section 920 of title 10 (article 120 of the Uniform Code of Military Justice), or under the 
laws of any State relating to aggravated sexual abuse, sexual abuse, abusive sexual contact 
involving a minor or ward, or sex trafficking of children, or the production, possession, receipt, 
mailing, sale, distribution, shipment, or transportation of child pornography, such person shall be 
fined under this title and imprisoned for not less than 25 years nor more than 50 years, but if such 
person has 2 or more prior convictions under this chapter, chapter 71, chapter 109A, or chapter 
117, or under section 920 of title 10 (article 120 of the Uniform Code of Military Justice), or under 



Ille laws of any State relating to the sexual exploitation of children, such person shall be fined 
under this title and imprisoned not less than 35 years nor more than life. Any organization that 
violates, or attempts or conspires to violate, this section shall be fined under this title. Whoever, in 
the course of an offense under this section, engages in conduct that results in the death of a person, 
shall be punished by death or imprisoned for not less than 30 years or for life. 

Title 18, U.S.C. § 2422. Coercion and Enticement 

(b) Whoever, using the mail or any facility or means of interstate or foreign commerce, or within 
the special maritime and territorial jurisdiction of the United States knowingly persuades, induces, 
entices, or coerces any individual who has not attained the age of 18 years, to engage in prostitution 
or any sexual activity for which any person can be charged with a criminal offense, or attempts to 
do so, shall be fined under this title and imprisoned not less than 10 years or for life. 

Title 18, U.S.C. § 2256. Definitions for Chapter 

For the purposes of this chapter, the term— 

(1) "minor" means any person under the age of eighteen years; 

(2) (A) Except as provided in subparagraph (B), "sexually explicit conduct" means actual or 

simulated— 

(i) sexual intercourse, including genital-genital, oral-genital, anal-
genital, or oral- 

anal, whether between persons of the same or opposite sex; 

(ii) bestiality; 

(iii) masturbation; 

(iv) sadistic or masochistic abuse; or 

(v) lascivious exhibition of the genitals or pubic area of any person; 

(B) 	For purposes of subsection 8(B) [1] of this section, "sexually explicit conduct" 
means— 

(i) 	sexual intercourse, including genital-genital, oral-genital, anal- 
genital,or oral-anal, whether between persons of the same or opposite sex, or 
lascivious simulated sexual intercourse where the genitals, breast, or pubic area of 
any person is exhibited; 

(fi) 	graphic or lascivious simulated; 

(I) bestiality; 

(II) masturbation; or 



(III) 	sadistic or masochistic abuse; or 

(iii) graphic or simulated lascivious exhibition of the genitals or pubic area of any person; 

(3) "producing" means producing, directing, manufacturing, issuing, publishing, or 
advertising; 

(4) "organization" means a person other than an individual; 

(5) "visual depiction" includes undeveloped film and videotape, data stored on computer disk 
or by electronic means which is capable of conversion finto a visual image, and data which is 
capable of conversion into a visual image that has been transmitted by any means, whether or 
not stored in a permanent format; 

(6) "computer" has the meaning given that term in section 1030 of this title; (7) "custody or 

control" includes temporary supervision over or responsibility for a minor whether legally or 

illegally obtained; 

(8) "child pornography" means any visual depiction, including any photograph, film, video, 
picture, or computer or computer-generated image or picture, whether made or produced by 
electronic, mechanical, or other means, of sexually explicit conduct, where— 

(A) the production of such visual depiction involves the use of a minor engaging 
in sexually explicit conduct; 

(B) such visual depiction is a digital image, computer image, or computer-
generated image that is, or is indistinguishable from, that of a minor engaging in 
sexually explicit conduct; or 

(C) such visual depiction has been created, adapted, or modified to appear that 
an identifiable minor is engaging in sexually explicit conduct. 

(9) "identifiable minor— 

(A) 	means a person— 

(i) 

(I) who was a minor at the time the visual depiction was created, 
adapted, or modified; or 

(II) whose image as a minor was used in creating, adapting, or 
modifying the visual depiction; and 

(ii) who is recognizable as an actual person by the person's face, likeness, or other 
distinguishing characteristic, such as a unique birthmark or other recognizable 
feature; and 



• (B) 	shall not be construed to require proof of the actual identity of the 
identifiable minor. 

(10) "graphic", when used with respect to a depiction of sexually explicit conduct, 
means that a viewer can observe any part of the genitals or pubic area of any depicted person 
or animal during any part of the time that the sexually explicit conduct is being depicted; and 

(11) the term "indistinguishable" used with respect to a depiction, means virtually 
indistinguishable, in that the depiction is such that an ordinary person viewing the depiction 
would conclude that the depiction is of an actual minor engaged in sexually explicit conduct. 
This defmition does not apply to depiction that are drawings, cartoons, sculptures, or 
paintings depicting minors or adults. 

Title 18, U.S.C. § 2253. Criminal Forfeiture 

(a) Property subject to criminal forfeiture.--A person who is convicted of an offense under this 
chapter involving a visual depiction described in section 2251, 2251A, 2252, 2252A, or 2260 of 
this chapter or who is convicted of an offense under section 2252B of this chapter, or who is 
convicted of an offense under chapter 109A, shall forfeit to the United States such person's interest 
in-- 

(1) any visual depiction described in section 2251, 2251A, or 22522  2252A, 2252B, 
or 2260 of this chapter, or any book, magazine, periodical, film, videotape, or other matter which 
contains any such visual depiction, which was produced, transported, mailed, shipped or received 
in violation of this chapter; 

(2) any property, real or personal, constituting or traceable to gross profits or other 
proceeds obtained from such offense; and 

(3) any property, real or personal, used or intended to be used to commit or to promote the 
commission of such offense or any property traceable to such property. 

(b) Section 413 of the Controlled Substances Act (21 U.S.C. 853) with the exception of 
subsections (a) and (d), applies to the criminal forfeiture of property pursuant to subsection 
(a). 



letitle 18, U.S.C. § 2428. Forfeitures 

(a) In general.--The court, in imposing sentence on any person convicted of a violation of this 
chapter, shall order, in addition to any other sentence imposed and irrespective of any provision 
of State law, that such person shall forfeit to the United States-- 

(1) such person's interest in any property, real or personal, that was used or ntended to be used to 
commit or to facilitate the commission of such violation; and 

(2) any property, real or personal, constituting or derived from any proceeds that such person 
obtained, directly or indirectly, as a result of such violation. 

(b) Property subject to forfeiture.-- 

(1) In general.--The following shall be subject to forfeiture to the United States and no property 
right shall exist in them: 

(A) Any property, real or personal, used or intended to be used to commit or to facilitate the 
commission of any violation of this chapter. 

(B) Any property, real or personal, that constitutes or is derived from proceeds traceable to any 
violation of this chapter. 

(2) Applicability of chapter 46.--The provisions of chapter 46 of this title relating to civil 
forfeitures shall apply to any seizure or civil forfeiture under this subsection. 



STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS 

  

Title 18 U.S.C. § 3299. 	 Child abduction and sex offenses 

Notwithstanding any other law, an indictment may be found or an information instituted at any 
time without limitation for any offense under section 1201 involving a minor victim, and for any 
felony under chapter 109A, 110 (except for section [S] 2257 and 2257A), or 117, or section 1591. 



• 	
Exhibit B 

Certified copy of the Indictment, dated 
January 24, 2019 



Thereby ( certify thstrbe:foregoíug is 
a trua copy oftbe ortgibal on fI115 in thla Office.  

CLERK, U.S. DI5171,1CT COURT 
EASTE DisnItetipf Iv CHIGAbr 

BY. 

Deputy 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF MICHIGAN 

SOUTBERN D'T`nt^'r 
Case:4:19-cr-20050 
Judge: Leitman, Matthew F. 
MJ: Davis, Stephanie Dawkins 
Filed: 01-24-2019 At 03:45 PM 
SEALED MATTER (dat) 

VS. VIOL: 18 U.S.C. § 2252A(g) 
18 U.S.0 . § 2251(a) 
18 U.S.C. § 2251(e) 

D-1, JEAN-DANIEL BRAVO GIDI, 18 U.S.C. § 2422(b) 
18 U.S.C. § 2252A(a)(2) 

Defendant. 18 U.S.C. § 2252A(b)(1) 
18 U.S.C. § 2253 
18 U.S.C. §2 
18 U.S.C. § 2252A(a)(5)(B) 
18 U.S.C. § 2252A(b)(2) 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

Plaintiff, 
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INDICTMENT  

THE GRAND JURY CHARGES: 

At all times in this Indictment: 

1. Minor Victim 13 (hereinafter "MV-13") was a resident of the Eastem 

District of Michigan and was a girl under the age of 18. 

2. During the time periods covered in this Indictment, JEAN-DANIEL 

BRAVO GIDI, along with WILLIAM BROOKS DAVIDSON, PIARON 

WRIGHT, NOEL EISLEY, TERRY KOVAC, BRET W. MASSEY, FELIPE 

DOMINGUEZ-MEIJA, WILLIAM T. PHILLIPS, and ERIC JAMES 

ROBINSON, worked together in a group, with others both known and 

unknown to the Grand Jury, to convince and, attempt to convince tninor 

victims, both known and unknown to the Grand Jury, to engage in sexually 

explicit conduct, as defined in 18 U.S.C. § 2256(2), on webcamera and to 

record this sexually explicit conduct. Specifically, JEAN-DANIEL BRAVO 

GIDI, along with WILLIAM BROOKS DAVIDSON, AARON WRIGHT, 

NOEL EISLEY, TERRY KOVAC, BRET W. MASSEY, FELIPE 

DOMINGUEZ-MEIJA, WILLIAM T. PHILLIPS, and ERIC JAMES 

ROBINSON, and others both known and unknown to the Grand Jury, 

conspired together through chat discussions over the Internet to lure minor 

victims to one or more chatroom-based websites. Once the minor victims 

2 



appeared in these chatroom-based websites, JEAN-DANIEL BRAVO GIDI, 

along with WILLIAM BROOICS DAVIDSON, AARON WRIGHT, NOEL 

EISLEY, TERRY KOVAC, BRET W. MASSEY, FELIPE DOMINGUEZ-

M'EUA, WILLIAM T. PHILLIPS, and ERIC JAMES ROBINSON, and others 

both known and unknown to the Grand Jury, enticed and attempted to entice 

the minor victims to engage in sexual acts, and to lasciviously display tkeir 

genitals and pubic area, on webcamera. JEAN-DANIEL BRAVO GIDI, 

along with WILLIAM BROOKS DAVIDSON, AARON WRIGHT, NOEL 

EISLEY, TERRY KOVAC, BRET W. MASSEY, FELIPE DOMINGUEZ-

1VLEIJA, WILLIAM T. PHILLIPS, and ERIC JAMES ROBINSON, and others 

both lmown and unknown to the Grand Jury, made recordings of this sexual 

activity and distributed the recordings to one another and to others both known 

and unknown to the Grand Jury. 
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COUNT ONE 

(Child Exploitation Enterprise, 18 U.S.C. § 2252A(g)) 

Paragraphs 1-2 of this Indictment are hereby incorporated by reference. 

Between the dates of October 22, 2016 and November 29, 2018, in the 

Eastem District of Michigan, and elsewhere, the defendant JEAN-DANIEL 

BRAVO GBJI, along with WILLIAM BROOKS DAVIDSON, AARON WRIGHT, 

NOEL EISLEY, TERRY KOVAC, BRET W. MASSEY, FELIPE DOMINGUEZ-

MEIJA, WILLIAM T. PHILLIPS, and ERIC JAMES ROBINSON (each charged 

elsewhere), and others both known and unknown to the Grand Jury, lcnowingly 

engaged in a child exploitation enterprise by violating Chapters 110 and 117 of Title 

18 of the United States Code (specifically 18 U.S.0 § 2251, 18 U.S.0 § 2422(b), and 

18 U.S.C. § 2252A), as a pare of a series of felony violations constituting three or 

more separate incidents and involving more than one minor victim, committing these 

offenses in concert with three or more other persons; all in violation of Title 18, 

United States Code, Section 2252A(g). 
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COUNT TWO  

(Conspiracy to Produce Child Pornography, 18 U.S.0 §§ 2251(a), 2251(e)) 

Between the dates of October 22, 2016 and November 29, 2018, in the 

Eastern District of Michigan, and, elsewhere, the defendant JEAN-DANIEL 

BRAVO GIDI; along with WILLIAM BROOKS DAVIDSON, AARON WRIGHT, 

NOEL EISLEY, TERRY KOVAC, BRET W. MASSEY, FELIPE DOMINGUEZ-

MEIJA, WILLIAM T. PHILLIPS, and ERIC JAMES ROBINSON (each charged 

elsewhere), did combine, conspire, confederate, and agree together and. with others 

both known and unknown to the Grand Jury, to knowingly employ, use, persuade, 

induce, entice, and coerce one or more minors to engage in sexually explicit conduct 

as defmed in 18 U.S.C. § 2256(2), for the purpose of producing any visual depiction 

of such conduct and transmitting a live visual depiction of such conduct, knowing 

and having reason to know that such visual depiction would be transported and 

transmitted using any means and facility of interstate and foreign commerce, and in 

and affecting interstate and foreign commerce; such visual depiction was produced 

• and transmitted using materials that have been mailed, shipped, and transported in 

and affecting interstate and foreign commerce by any means, including by computer; 

and such visual depiction was transported and transmitted using any means and 

facility of interstate and foreign commerce and in.and affecting interstate and foreign 

contuerce; all in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 2251(a), (e). 
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COUNT THREE 

(Production of Child Pornography, 18 U.S.C. §§ 2, 2251(a)) 

On or about October 22, 2016 through on or about Marchof 2017, in the 

Eastern District of Michigan, and elsewhere, the defendant, JEAN-DANIEL 

BRAVO GIDI, along with TERRY KOVAC, BR_ET W. MASSEY, FELIPE 

DO1VIINGUEZ-MEIJA, and WILLIAM T. PHILLIPS (each charged elsewhere), 

and others both known and unknown to the Grand Jury, attempted to and did 

knowingly employ, use, persuade, induce, entice, and coerce a minor, to wit: MV-

13, to engage in sexually explicit conduct, as defined in 18 U.S.C. § 2256(2), for the 

purpose of producing any visual depiction of such conduct and transmitting a live 

visual depiction of such conduct, knowing and having reason to know that such 

visual depiction would be transported and transmitted using any means and facility 

of interstate and foreign commerce, and in and affecting interstate and foreign 

commerce; such visual depiction was produced and transmitted using materials that 

have been mailed, shipped, and transported in and affecting interstate and foreign 

commerce by any means, including by computer; and such visual depiction was 

transported and transmitted using any means and facility of interstate and foreign 

commerce and in and affecting interstate and foreign commerce; all in violation of 

Title 18, United States Code, Sections 2, 2251(a), (e). 
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COUNT FOUR 

(Coercion and Enticement of a Minor 18 U.S.C. §§ 2, 2422(b)). 

On or about October 22, 2016 through on or about March of 2017, in the 

Eastern District of Michigan and elsewhere, the defendant, JEAN-DANIEL 

BRAVO Gin, along with TERRY KOVAC, BRET W. MASSEY, FELIPE 

DOMINGUEZ-MEIJA, and WILLIAM T. PHILLIPS (each charged elsewhere), 

and others both known and unknown to the Grand Jury, did knowingly use a facility 

and mean of interstate and foreign commerce (to wit: the Internet) to persuade, 

induce, entice and coerce a person who had not attained the age of 18 years (to wit: 

MV-13) to engage in any sexual activity for which any person could be charged with 

a criminal offense, including but not limited to the production of child pornography 

as described in 18 U.S.C. § 2256(8), all in violation of Title 18, United States Code, 

Sections 2, 2422(b). 
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COUNT FIVE 

(Conspiracy to Distribute Child Pomography, 18 U.S.C. §§ 2252A(a)(2), 
2252A(b)(1)) 

Between the dates of October 22, 2016 and November 29, 2018, in the Basten 

District of Michigan, and elsewhere, the defendant JEAN-DANIEL BRAVO GIDI, 

along with WILLIAM BROOKS DAVIDSON, AARON WRIGHT, NOEL 

EISLEY, TERRY KOVAC, BRET W. MASSEY, FELIPE DO1VIINGUEZ-MEIJA, 

WILLIAM T. PHILLIPS, and ERIC JAMES ROBINSON (each charged 

elsewhere), did combine, conspire, confederate, and agree together and with others 

known and unknown to the Grand Jury, to knowingly distribute child pornography, 

as defmed in 18 U.S.C. § 2256(8), and the imagen distributed had been shipped and 

transported using the Internet, a means and facility of interstate cornmerce, and had 

been shipped and transported in or affecting interstate or foreign conunerce by any 

means, including by computer; all in violation of Title 18, United States Code, 

Section 2252A(a)(2) & 2252A(b)(1). 
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COUNT SIX 

(Conspiracy Access with Intent to View Child Pomography 18 U.S.C. §§ 
2252A(a)(5)(B), 2252A(b)(2)) 

Between the dates of October 22, 2016 and November 29, 2018, in the Eastem 

District of Michigan, and elsewhere, the defendant JEAN-DANIEL BRAVO GIDI, 

along with WILLIAM BROOKS DAVIDSON, AARON WRIGHT, NOEL 

EISLEY, TERRY KOVAC, BRET W. MASSEY, FELIPE DOMINGUEZ-MEIJA, 

WILLIAM T. PHILLIPS, and ERIC JAMES ROBINSON (each charged 

elsewhere), did combine, conspire, confederate, and agree together and with others 

known and unknown to the Grand Jury, to knowingly access with intent to view 

material which contained one or more images of child pornography, as defined in 

Title 18, United States Code, Section 2256(8)(A), that involved one or more 

prepubescent minors and one or more minors who had not attained twelve (12) years 

of age, and which had been shipped and transported using any means and facility of 

interstate and foreign commerce, had been shipped and transported in and affecting 

interstate and foreign commerce, and were produced using materials that have been 

mailed, shipped and transported in and affecting interstate and foreign commerce by 

any means, including by computer, all in violation of Title 18, United States Code, 

Section 2252A(a)(5)(B) & 2252(A)(b)(2). 
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FORFEITURE ALLEGATION 

1. The allegations of this Indictment are re-alleged as if fully set forth 

here, for the purpose of alleging forfeiture, pursuant to Title 18, United States 

Code, Section 2253 and Title 18, United States Code, Section 2428. 

2. If convicted of an offense charged and set forth aboye, JEAN-

DANIEL BRAVO GIDI, shall forfeit to the United States any and all materials and 

property used and intended to be used in the distribution, possession, and 

transportation of visual depictions of minors engaging in sexually explicit conduct, 

and any and di property, real or personal, constituting or traceable to gross profits 

or other proceeds obtained from the offense. 

THIS IS A TRUE BILL. 

MATTIIEW SCHNEIDER 
UNITED STATES ATT 

MATTHEW A. ROTH 
Assistant United States Attomey 
Chief, Major Crimes Unit 
211 W. Foil. Street, Suite 2001 
Detroit, Michigan 48226 
Email: rnroth(ffiusa.doj.gov   

Dated: January 24, 2019  

APRIL N. RUSSO 
KEVIN M. MULCAHY 
Assistant United States Attomeys 
211 West Fort Street, Ste. 2001 
Detroit, MI 48226-3220 
Phone: (313) 226-9129 
Email: april.russo@usdoi.gov  

I hereby certify that the foregoing is 
s 'ate co; y of the original on file in Ibis 

ffice. 
CLERK. U, S, JLITSTRICT COURT 

10 	FAS TE: 01317LOT OF MICHIGAN 

BY: 	 9—edITH 
Deputy 
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E  A 1IP (Rev. 11/11) Criminal Complaint 
AUSA: April N. Russo 	 Telephone: (313) 226-9129 

Special Agent: 	Adam Christensen 	Telephone: (313) 965-2323 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
for the 

  

Eastern District of Michigan 

United States of America 
v. 

Jean-Daniel Bravo Gidi 
Case: 2:18—mj-30569 
Assigned To : Unassigned 
Assign. Date : 10/26/2018 
Description: CMP USA v. SEALED MATTER (SO) 

CRIMINAL COMPLAINT 

I, the complainant in this case, state that the following is true to the best of my knowledge and belief. 

On or about the date(s) of  December 2014 tbrough March 2, 2018  in the county of  Wayne and elsewhere  in the  

Basten 	District of 	Michigan 	the defendant(s) violated: 
• 

Code Section 

18 U.S.C. § 2252A(a)(2) and (b)(1) 
18 U.S.C. Section 2252A(a)(5)(b) and (b)(2) 
18 U.S.C. Section 2251(a) and (e) 
18 U,S.C. Section 2422 
18 U.S.C. Section 2252A(g)(2) 

Offense Description 

Child exploitation enterprise, Production and conspiracy to produce chíld 
pomography, receipt and conspiracy to receive child pornography, distribution 
and conspiracy to distribute child pornography, enticement of a minor, access 
with intent to view child pornography and conspiracy to access with intent to 
view child pomography 

This criminal complaint is based on these facts: 

See Attached Affidavit 

Continned on the attached sheet. 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is 
a trae copy of the original on fiie 112 this 
Office. 
CLERK, U,S. DISTRICT COURT 
EASTERN DISTRICT OF MICITGAN 

BY: 	 Dar  
Deputy 

Complainant's stgnature 

Special Agent Adam Christensen, FBI 
Printed name and title 

ANTHONY P. PATTI 

Judge 's signature 

Hon. Anthony P. Patti, U.S. Magistrate Judge 
Printed neme and title 

Swom to betbre me and signed in my presence. 

OCT 2 ti 2010 
Date: 	  

City and state:  Detroit, Michigan 
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Certified copy of the arrest warrant, 
dated October 26, 2018 



ir - 

Asy.151p.'s. sánattre 

UNITED STA 
Printed narre and 

City, and state: Detroit, Michigan 

Return.  

This warrant was received on (date) 	 , and the person was arrested on (date) 	  
at (city and state) 

Date: 
Ári.esting 	is signatura 

Printed name and fide 

Distribution: Original Cour!, ]copy LAS. Mansita!— 2 copies USA 

• 

  

AUSA: April N. Russo 	 Telephone: (313) 226-9129 
Special Agent: 	Adam Christensen 	Telephone: (313) 965-2323 AO 442 (Rev. 11/11) Arrest Warrant 

   

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
for the 

Eastern District of Michigan 

United States of America 

v. 

Jean-Daniel Bravo Gidi 
Case: 2:18—mj-30569 
Assigned To : Unassigned 
Assign. Date : 10/26/2018 
Description: CMP USA v. SEALED MATTER (SO) 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is 
a trae copy of the original on file in Chis 
Office. 
CLERK, U.S. DISTRICT COURT 
EASTERN DISTRICT OF MICHIGAN 

BY: 	 te" 

ARILEST WARRANT 

To: 	Any authorized law enforcement officer 

Deputy 
YOU ARE.COMMANDED to anest and bring before a United States magistrate judáe without unnecessary delay 

(lame ofperson lo be arrested)  Jean-Daniel Bravo Gidi  

who is accused of an offense or violation based on the following document filed with the court: 

Indictment 	0 Superseding Indictment 	n Information n  Superseding Information Ei Complaint 

n Probation Violation Petition 	ri  Supervised Release Violation Petition 0 Violation Notice n Order of the Court 

This offense is briefly described as follows: 

18 U.S.C. §§ 2251(a) and (e), 2422, 2252A(a)(2) and (b)(1) and 2252A(a)(5)(B) and (b)(2) 

Child Exploitation Entetprise, Production and conspiracy to produce child pomography, enticement of a minor, receipt and conspiracy to 
receive child pomography, access with intent to view child pomography and conspiracy to access with intent to view child pomography 

ANTHONY P. PATTI 
Date: October 26, 2018 
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I, Adam Christensen, be ng duly sworn, depose and state: 

1. I reside in the United States of America. 

2. I am a Special Agent with the Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) in Detroit, Michigan, 

and have been employed as such for approximately 9 years. 

3. The FBI is one of the agencies within the U.S. government responsible for the enforcement 

of federal child exploitation and child pornography laws. As an FBI Special Agent, I have 

personally conducted and participated in many investigations that have resulted in the 

arrests and convictions of people responsible for the production, distribution and 

possession of child exploitation materials. 

4. Based on my training and experience as an agent with the FBI, I am familiar with the 

means and methods that individuals involved in the production of child exploitation 

materials use to create and distribute these materials, including the methods used to entice 

(.1minors in order to achieve the production of these materials. I am also knowledgé, le 
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e In the course of my duties, I have become familiar with the charges and evidence in the 

case of United States v. Jean-Daniel Bravo Gidi, (Case No. 19-CR-20050) (also referred to 

as numbers 4:19-CR-20050 and 2:18-MJ-30569). These charges follow an investigation by 

the Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI), which revealed that from at least October 2016 

to November 2018, JEAN-DANIEL BRAVO GIDI (GIDI), a citizen of Chile, was a 

member of a child exploitation ring. The majority of GIDI's fellow group members are 

United States citizens who resided in the United States for the duration of the offense 

conduct. The group worked together, pretending to be teenagers, to entice minor females 

to engage in sexual activity on web camera, often recording the activity. GIDI used several 

aliases during this criminal conduct, including, but not limited to, DANNY, LIGHT, and 

KUROHIGEXYONKO. 

I. 	SUMMARY  

6. This affidavit is part of an ongoing investigation related to the sexual exploitation of 

children, specifically minor preteen and teenage girls, on a chatroom-based website. To 

protect the integrity of the investigation, the website will be referred to throughout this 

affidavit as Website A. 

7. The investigation reveals that Website A is primarily used by adult men seeking to sexually 

exploit teenage girls. These men pretend to be teenage boys, teenage girls, or others to 

entice the victims to engage in sexually explicit activity on camera during live-streaming 

chats. Throughout the course of this investigation, the FBI has identified more than 100 

minor victims, with dozens more yet unidentified, who remove clothing, engage in sexual 

activity, and otherwise pose for other users on the various chatrooms on Website A. The 

investigation also reveals that in many instances groups of users on Website A work 
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• 1. S3 gave the FBI permission to assume his identity in the Skype Group chats. A review of 

h storical Skype chats between S3 and other members of the Skype Group corroborated 

S3's statements about group-related activity on Website A and Website B. 

The Members of the Skype Group and Their Victims  

12. The review of the group's Skype conversations, which were recovered during the forensic 

examination of S3 and other defendants' computers, revealed numerous examples of the 

Skype Group coercing teenage girls into engaging in sexually explicit conduct on Website 

A. 	One of the consistent contributors to the Group chat was Skype account 

KUROHIGEXYONKO. The Skype Group members referred to the user of this account as 

LIGHT and/or DANNY in their group chat. For example, on April 19, 2016, a group member 

asked, "who is kurohige?" KUROHIGEXYONKO answers, "danny :P." DANNY aka 

LIGHT aka KUROHIGEXYONKO made numerous comments throughout the group chat 

threads. 

13. One of the girls DANNY spoke about was MV-13 (born in September 2001), an identified 

victim who resides in the Eastern District of Michigan. MV-13 was 15 years old when the 

group targeted her. A group member invited her to Website A using a fake profile on 

MyLOL.com, a teenage dating website. The group joked about her "granny panties" and 

described what she looked like. They also talked about how every girl with her same name 

had been a "win" for them. They also discussed her being "grounded" and only able to use 

a webcam at her dad's house. DANNY made numerous comments about MV-13. He asked 

the group if they had "looped" to her and indicated that he would "loop" to try to get her to 

engage in sexual activity. He also told the group, "tell her to go to bed and show pussy" and 

told them, "ask her for her ass too, please." The group, DANNY included, continued to talk 
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about and to target MV-13 for several months. At one point, they shared a child pomography 

video with each other of MV-13 that one of them had recorded after they enticed her to 

engage in sexual activity on Website A. Her logins to Website A are throughout 2017. 

14. Another girl that DANNY spoke about was MV-25 (born in September 2004). MV-25 was 

12 years old in January 2017. DANNY talked about MV-25 taking a shower with a friend 

on Website A and advertised this to the group. He also told the other group members he 

thought she was 13 years old. He warned them against go ng in her chatroom and "ruining" 

her taking the shower with her friend. 

15. The FBI analyzed the Website A logs and determined that a user consistently logged-on to 

Skype Group rooms from Chile. Moreover, the Website B logs showed a user identified as 

DANNY consistently logging in and chatting with minors. 

Residential Search Warrants, Arrests, and Statements of Skype Group Members  

16. Based on the evidente detailed aboye, a search warrant for the KUROHIGEXYONKO 

Skype account associated with DANNY aka LIGHT yielded responsive materials, 

including chats and Eles sent to and received from the Skype account between September 

2, 2017, and January 25, 2018. FBI analysis of the conversations between this account and 

others determined that the primary purpose of their conversations was to recruit minor 

females to engage in sexual activity on web camera. 

17. The Skype Group members discussed targeting girls and getting them to engage in sexual 

activity. They shared explicit videos with each other using MegaNz, a New Zealand-based 

file sharing website. For example, on September 30, 2017, the members discussed the 

importance of "loops." One member said that a girl will only masturbate once to a black 

screen. DANNY disagreed. DANNY told him, "ask yourself why annie or bailey bated for 
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• you and you just blackscreened." And, on October 1, 2017, DANNY said, "get her to use 

her showerhead on pussy tho :3." On October 6, 2017, a group member asked DANNY for 

"C's show from 20140826" and more specifically a clip from "u10 1408482868067." 

DANNY provided a thumbnail of images from a video depicting an identified minor victim 

MV-18 (born in April 2001) undressing and displaying her genitals to the web camera with 

just a G-string pair of underwdr on. He asked this group member whether this was the 

conect video. He later sent the group member a link to the video file stored on the MegaNZ 

website. This video meets the definition of child pornography ander United States law. I 

reviewed both the chats and images provided in response to the search warrant. 

Approximately 70 of the images met the federal definition of child pornography in the United 

States. 

18. The Skype chats also revealed that DANNY aka LIGHT (Skype account 

KUROHIGEXYONKO) lives in Chile. DANNY talked about being a student in Chile and, 

on December 21, 2017, also talked about getting an internship at Equifax. 

Identifying GIDI as DANNY aka LIGHT from the Skype Group  

19. On July 11, 2018, another member of the Skype Group voluntarily provided infounation to 

the FBI. This defendant, hereinafter referred to as S4, and DANNY had been in 

commumcation with each other since approximately late 2012 and early 2013 until as 

recently as May 2018. Throughout that time period, S4 and DANNY worked together, and 

with other members of the Skype Group, to sexually exploit children. S4 explained that 

around the time of April 2017, he and several other Skype Group members started using 

Snapchat to recruit and entice minors. They made their own, smaller chat thread on Skype 

to coordinate their efforts. They started working with a few other users as well. This new 

6 



• group included VIVI, BENN, and DANNY, all of whom were part of the old group. They 

typically sent minors links on Snapchat to the website Appear.in, where they would try to 

get them to undress and masturbate on web camera. 

20. S4 estimated that from May 2017 through May 2018, the group had successfully enticed at 

least 20 minor females between the ages of 11 to 15 years old to engage in sexual act vity on 

web camera. S4 knew that DANNY resided in Chile and that he was a student. He also 

stated that he knew DANNY was approximately 28 years old because S4 knew DANNY was 

19 in 2009. S4 sent DANNY US$25 on PayPal shortly before S4's arrest. 

21. The FBI found evidente of the PayPal transaction between DANNY and S4. It was the only 

PayPal transaction from S4's account in 2018; it was in the amount of US$25 to a Jean 

Bravo GIDI. The email associated with the account was idanibMemail.com. Records from 

Google established that the subscriber for this email was Jean Daniel Bravo GIDI. The 

records from Google further showed a recovery email account for GIDI as 

jdanibghotmail.com. Facebook was subpoenaed for subscriber information for accounts 

associated with the email addresses jdaniba0,gmail.com  and jdanibg(&,hotmail.com. There 

was no account associated with the Gmail account. However, on September 6, 2018, 

Facebook provided information that the account associated with the Hotmail address had an 

account ID 655165975 and was associated with GIDI. Jean Dani Bravo GIDI had a publicly 

viewable profile on beBee.com. The profile listed him as a marketing student at Duoc UC 

in Chile. It also listed his current employment at Equifax. 

22. The information regarding GIDI detailed aboye was provided to Chilean law enforcement. 

On October 20, 2018, based on this information, they identified the suspect as Jean-Daniel 

Bravo Gidi, date of birth June 26, 1991, national identification number 17.837.407-9. The 
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• photograph of GIDI in the national identification database matched the individual depicted 

in Facebook account ID 655165975. Chilean law enforcement identified an additional 

social media account for GIDI which displayed his photograph, and confirmed that he had 

attended university at Duoc UC. 

23. On November 29, 2018, I flew to Chile to assist Chilean law enforcement in the execution 

of a search warrant at the residence, in Chile, associated with GIDI. Chilean law 

enforcement leamed of this residence from GIDI's employer, Equifax. I observed Chilean 

law enforcement execute the search warrant, recovering numerous electronic devices. 

GIDI was present at the residence. 

24. GIDI made a number of admissions to law enforcement officers at the time of the search, 

including: 

• He said he participated in a Skype group and used several accounts to exchange child 
pornography; 

• He mentioned group members BENN and VIVI, amongst others; 

• He said the group shared files on MegaNz; 

• He admitted that he pretended to be a minor to entice girls to engage in sexual activity 
and that he recorded them doing so; 

• He said he showed minors child pornography; 
• He said he recorded them specifically engaged in acts of masturbation; 

• He listed another house where he kept devices with child pornography; 
• He said he used videos of girls between the ages of 11 and 14 and pretended to be 

those girls. 

25. GIDI's devices have been imaged, and I have started a forensic examination of them. So far, 

over 1,500 imagen and/or videos of child pornography have been recovered, some of children 

under the age of 12. There are child pornography files including those of MV-13. There is 

a video of MV-25 in the shower that corresponds with GIDI's comments about her on that 

day. 
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IIL IDENTIFICATION 

26. Jean-Daniel Bravo GIDI, alias Danny, Light, and Kurohigexyonko, is a citizen of Chile, born 

on June 26, 1991, in Chile. His Chilean national identification number is 17,837,407-9. 

27. Attached to this affidavit as Attachment 1 is a photograph of Jean-Daniel Bravo GIDI. I was 

present during the execution of a search warrant at his residence in Chile and observed him 

at that time and know him to be the same individual depicted in the Facebook account and 

on the national identification card in Attachment 1. 1 interviewed GIDI and he admitted to 

myself and other law enforcement officers present that he is the same individual who engaged 

in the conduct described aboye. 

Adam Christensen 
Special Agent 
Federal Bureau of Investigation 

SIGNED AND SUBSCRIBED TO BEFORE ME 
THIS 3rd day of April 2019 

HON. R. Steven Whalen 
U.S. Magistrate Judge 
Eastern District of Michigan 
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• 
ESTADOS UNIDOS 

DEPARTAMENTO DE JUSTICIA 

~oree  

zrNet  
a  e ',z'Ne• 

Washington, D.C., [fecha] 

A quien corresponda: 

Certifico que  Frances Chang  , cuya firma aparece en el documento que se 
acompaña, actualmente desempeña y a la fecha en que firmó dicho documento 
desempeñaba el cargo de  Directora Asociada, Oficina de Asuntos 
Internacionales, División Penal,  
Departamento de Justicia de los EE.UU., Washington, DC, 
debidamente comisionada y calificada. 

En testimonio de lo anterior yo, 	William P. Barr 

Procurador de los Estados Unidos, 
he hecho estampar el Sello del 
Departamento de Justicia y solicitado 
al Director/Director Adjunto de la 
Oficina de Asuntos Internacionales que 
dé fe de mi firma, en la fecha señalada 
al inicio de este instrumento. 

[firma] William P. Barr 
Procurador 

Por:  [firmado]  
Director/Director Adjunto de la Oficina de 

Asuntos Internacionales, División de lo 

Penal 
CRM-181/abril de 1998 



• 	CERTIFICADO 

Yo, Frances Chang, Directora Asociada de la Oficina de Asuntos Internacionales, División 

de lo Penal, Departamento de Justicia de los Estados Unidos de América, certifico que adjunto a 

la presente es la declaración jurada original, con pruebas y traducción, de la Fiscal Auxiliar de los 

Estados Unidos, April N. Russo de la Fiscalía de los Estados Unidos para el Distrito Este de 

Michigan, que fue juramentada ante Juez Magistrado R. Steven Whalen, del Tribunal Distrital de 

los Estados Unidos para el Distrito Este de Michigan, el Abril 3, 2019, y que se ofrece en apoyo 

de la solicitud formal para la extradición de Chile de JEAN-DANIEL BRAVO GIDI. 

Copias fieles de estos documentos se mantienen en los archivos oficiales del Departamento 

de Justicia de los Estados Unidos de América en Washington, D.C. 

Jfirmadol  
Frances Chang 
Directora Asociada 
Oficina de Asuntos Internacionales 
División de lo Penal 
Departamento de Justicia de EE.UU 

Jfecha] 
FECHA 



e 	TRIBUNAL DE DISTRITO DE LOS ESTADOS UNIDOS 

DISTRITO ESTE DE MICH IGAN 

Caso Núm. 19-CR-20050 

DECLARACIÓN  
JURADA EN  
APOYO A LA  
SOLICITUD DE  
EXTRADICIÓN  

ESTADOS UNIDOS DE AMÉRICA 

contra 

JEAN-DANIEL BRAVO GIDI 

Yo, April N. Russo, habiendo prestado juramento debidamente, testifico y declaro que: 

1. Soy ciudadana de los Estados Unidos de América y residente en el Estado de Michigan. 

2. Me gradué de la Facultad de Derecho de la Universidad de Virginia en 2011. 

3. Desde noviembre de 2014 hasta la actualidad, he estado trabajando para el 

Departamento de Justicia de los Estados Unidos como Fiscal Auxiliar de los 

Estados Unidos para el Distrito Este de Michigan. Como Fiscal Auxiliar de los 

Estados Unidos para el Distrito Este de Michigan, soy responsable de la preparación 

y el procesamiento de casos penales contra aquellas personas dedicadas a 

violaciones penales de las leyes de los Estados Unidos. Durante mi desempeño 

como Fiscal Auxiliar de los Estados Unidos, he adquirido conocimiento con 

respecto a las leyes y procedimientos penales de los Estados Unidos. Debido a mi 

capacitación y experiencia, tengo conocimiento de las leyes y procedimientos 

penales de los Estados Unidos. 

4. En el desempeño de mis funciones, me he familiarizado con los cargos y las pruebas 

en el caso de Estados Unidos contra Jean-Daniel Bravo Gidi, Caso Núm. 19-CR-

20050 (también conocido como caso 4:19-CR-20050 y 2:18-MJ-30569). Estos cargos 

resultan de una investigación del Buró Federal de Investigaciones (FBI) sobre las 



actividades de los miembros de una banda de explotación infantil de los cuales 

Jean-Daniel Bravo Gidi (GIDI) era miembro. 

Por medio del presente doy fe y 
certifico, que esta es una copia 
verdadera y la original esta registrada 
en esta oficina 

firma  
Empleado, Corte Distrital Este de 
Michigan 
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• 
JI. LOS CARGOS Y LAS LEYES PERTINENTES 

7. El 26 de octubre de 2018, se interpuso una denuncia penal en el Tribunal de Distrito de Estados 

Unidos para el Distrito Este de Michigan, que acusaba a GIDI de violar las leyes de los Estados 

Unidos contra la explotación infantil. El 24 de enero de 2019, un gran jurado convocado en el 

Distrito Este de Michigan emitió una acusación formal, que imputaba a GIDI los siguientes delitos: 

en el Cargo Uno, participación en una actividad de explotación infantil, en violación de las 

Secciones 2251, 2422(b) y 2252A(g) del Título 18 del Código de los Estados Unidos; en el Cargo 

Dos, conspiración para producir pornografía infantil, en violación de las Secciones 2251(a) y 

2251(e) del Título 18 del Código de los Estados Unidos; en el Cargo Tres, producción e intento de 

producción de pornografía infantil, en violación de las Secciones 2, 2251(a) y 2251(e) del Título 18 

del Código de los Estados Unidos; en el Cargo Cuatro, persuasión de un menor de edad, en 

violación de las Secciones 2 y 2422(b) del Título 18 del Código de los Estados Unidos; en el Cargo 

Cinco, conspiración para distribuir pornografía infantil, en violación de las Secciones 2252A(a)(2) y 

2252A(b)(1) del Título 18 del Código de los Estados Unidos; y en el Cargo Seis conspiración para 

acceder con la intención de ver pornografía infantil, en violación de las Secciones 2252A(5)(b) y 

2252A(b)(2) del Título 18 de los Código de Estados Unidos. La acusación formal también contiene 

una cláusula de decomiso que cita las Secciones 2253 y 2428 del Título 18 del Código de los 

Estados Unidos. GIDI no ha sido procesado, condenado ni ordenado a cumplir una sentencia con 

anterioridad por los delitos por los que se solicita la extradición. 

8. Las partes pertinentes de las leyes aplicables se adjuntan a esta declaración jurada como Prueba A. 

Cada una de estas leyes estaba debidamente promulgada y vigente en el momento en que se cometió 

el delito y en el momento en que se presentó la Acusación formal, y permanecen en plena vigencia 

en cuanto a la conducta imputada. Los delitos penales pertinentes imputados en la Acusación formal 
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• constituyen delitos graves en virtud de las leyes de los Estados Unidos. 

9. También he incluido como parte de la Prueba A la parte pertinente de la Sección 3299 del Título 18 

del Código de los Estados Unidos que dispone que no se aplicará la ley de prescripción a ninguno de 

los delitos imputados en la Acusación formal. 

10. He revisado a fondo la ley de prescripción aplicable, yen este caso no impide el procesamiento de los 

cargos. 

11. Con base en los cargos de la Acusación formal, el 26 de octubre de 2018, el Tribunal de Distrito de los 

Estados Unidos para el Distrito Este de Michigan giró una orden de aprehensión contra GIDI. Esta 

orden de aprehensión sigue siendo válida y ejecutable. 

12. Es la práctica del Tribunal de Distrito de los Estados Unidos para el Distrito Este de Michigan 

conservar las acusaciones formales originales y las órdenes de aprehensión y archivarlas con los 

registros del Tribunal. Por lo tanto, he obtenido copias certificadas de la Acusación formal, la 

denuncia penal y la orden de aprehensión del Secretario del Tribunal y las he adjuntado a esta 

declaración jurada corno Prueba B, Prueba C y Prueba D, respectivamente. 

13. A GIDI se le imputa en los Cargos Uno, Dos, Cinco y Seis de la Acusación formal el delito de 

conspiración. Conforme a la ley de los Estados Unidos, una conspiración es un acuerdo formulado 

para violar otras leyes penales. En otras palabras, conforme a ley de los Estados Unidos, el acto de 

aliarse y comprometerse con una o más personas para violar la ley de los Estados Unidos es un delito 

en sí mismo. Dicho acuerdo no necesita ser formal y puede ser simplemente un entendimiento verbal o 

no verbal. Una conspiración se considera una asociación con fines delictivos en la que cada miembro o 

participante se convierte en el agente o socio de los demás miembros. Una persona puede convertirse 

en miembro de una conspiración sin tener pleno conocimiento de todos los detalles del plan ilegal o 

los nombres e identidades de todos los demás presuntos coconspiradores. 

14. Por consiguiente, si un 
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acusado entiende la naturaleza ilícita de un plan y se une deliberada e intencionalmente a ese plan 

al menos en una ocasión, eso es suficiente para declararlo culpable de conspiración, incluso si no 

hubiera participado antes e incluso si solo desempeñó un rol menor. De manera similar, un 

acusado no necesita estar al tanto de todos los actos de sus coconspiradores para ser responsable 

de estos actos, siempre y cuando sea un miembro con conocimiento de la conspiración y los actos 

de los coconspiradores sean previsibles dentro del ámbito de la conspiración. 

15. La Sección 2 del Título 18 del Código de los Estados Unidos, según se imputa en los Cargos Tres y 

Cuatro, dispone que quienquiera que ordene, promueva, asista o cause la comisión de un delito, 

será responsabilizado y castigado de la misma manera que si fuera el autor o la persona que lo 

perpetró. Esto significa que la culpabilidad de un acusado también se puede demostrar incluso si él 

no realizó personalmente cada acto involucrado en la comisión del delito imputado. La ley 

reconoce que, normalmente, cualquier cosa que una persona pueda hacer por sí misma también se 

puede lograr a través de la dirección de otra persona como un agente, o actuando conjuntamente 

con, o bajo la dirección de, otra persona o personas en un esfuerzo conjunto. Por lo que, si los actos 

o la conducta de un agente, empleado u otro asociado del acusado fueron dirigidos o autorizados 

deliberadamente por el acusado, o si el acusado instigó y secundó a otra persona al unirse 

deliberadamente a esa persona en la comisión de un delito, entonces la ley establece que el acusado 

es responsable de la conducta de esa persona, como si el mismo acusado hubiera participado en tal 

conducta. Citar la ley no constituye un cargo separado en contra del acusado; más bien proporciona 

una teoría adicional de responsabilidad penal en virtud de la cual el acusado puede ser declarado 

culpable en el juicio. 

16. El Cargo Uno de la Acusación formal imputa a GIDI la participación en una actividad de explotación 
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• 	infantil. En cuanto al delito en el Cargo Uno, Estados Unidos debe demostrar que GIDI violó una ley 

contra la explotación infantil como parte de una serie de violaciones de delitos graves que constituyen 

tres o más incidentes separados entre las fechas del 22 de octubre de 2016 y 29 de noviembre de 2018; 

que la serie de violaciones de delitos graves involucró a más de una víctima menor de edad; y que el 

acusado ha cometido una serie de violaciones de delitos graves en concierto con otras tres o más 

personas. Según la ley de Estados Unidos, los Cargos Dos a Seis son violaciones graves de las leyes 

contra explotación infantil. La pena máxima por este delito es la cadena perpetua, una multa de 

$250,000 en moneda de los Estados Unidos y puesta en libertad supervisada de por vida. 

17. El Cargo Dos de la Acusación formal imputa a GIDI conspiración para producir pornografía infantil. 

En cuanto al delito en el Cargo Dos, Estados Unidos debe demostrar que GIDI y una o más personas 

llegaron a un acuerdo, o conspiraron, para cometer el delito de producción de pornografía infantil. La 

pena máxima por este delito son treinta años de prisión, una multa de $250,000 en moneda de los 

Estados Unidos y puesta en libertad supervisada de por vida. 

18. El Cargo Tres de la Acusación imputa a GIDI el delito de tentativa de producción y/o producción de 

pornografía infantil de la víctima MV-13, o ayuda y complicidad en este delito. En cuanto al delito en 

el Cargo Tres, Estados Unidos debe demostrar que una persona o personas emplearon, usaron, 

persuadieron, instigaron o forzaron al menor mencionado para participar en una conducta sexualmente 

explícita con el fin de producir una representación visual de la conducta; y que la persona o personas 

sabían o tenían razones para saber que la representación visual sería transmitida por algún medio o 

servicio de comercio interestatal; o que la representación visual fue transmitida utilizando algún medio 

o servicio de comercio interestatal; o que la representación visual fue producida o transmitida 

utilizando materiales que fueron enviados por correo postal, enviados o transportados afectando el 

comercio interestatal por algún medio, incluyendo por computadora. 
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Conforme a la ley de Estados Unidos, el término "menor" se refiere a cualquier persona menor de 

18 años de edad. No es necesario que el Gobierno demuestre que la persona o personas que 

captaron al menor sabían que la víctima era menor de edad. Tampoco es necesario que el Gobierno 

demuestre que la persona o personas que captaron al menor tomaron las fotografías o grabaron los 

videos. El término "con el propósito de" significa que la persona actuó con la intención de crear 

representaciones visuales de conducta sexual explícita y que la persona conocía el carácter y el 

contenido de las representaciones visuales. El término "conducta sexual explícita" incluye la 

masturbación real o simulada o exhibición lasciva de los genitales. Para decidir si una exhibición es 

lasciva, la ley de Estados Unidos requiere que el jurado tenga en cuenta: (1) si el punto focal de la 

representación visual son los genitales o el área púbica del menor; (2) si el escenario de la 

representación visual es sexualmente sugestivo, es decir, un lugar o pose generalmente asociados 

con actividad sexual; con vestimenta inapropiada, teniendo en cuenta la edad del menor; (4) si el 

menor está total o parcialmente vestido, o desnudo; (5) si la representación sugiere timidez sexual o 

una disposición a participar en la actividad sexual; y (6) si la representación visual está diseñada o 

destinada a provocar una respuesta sexual en el espectador. Esta lista no es exhaustiva y una 

imagen o un video no tendrán que cumplir un único factor para ser considerados lascivos. El 

juzgador de los hechos decide si es lascivo basado en el contenido global. El término "medios o 

servicio de comercio interestatal" incluye la Internet o el teléfono. La frase "que afecte el comercio 

interestatal" significa que tiene al menos un efecto mínimo sobre el comercio interestatal. La pena 

máxima por este delito son treinta años de prisión, una multa de $250,000 en moneda de los 

Estados Unidos y puesta en libertad supervisada de por vida.  

19. El Cargo Cuatro de la Acusación formal imputa a GIDI la seducción por Internet de un menor, o 

8 



• ayuda y complicidad en este delito. En cuanto al delito en el Cargo Cuatro, Estados Unidos debe 

demostrar que una persona o personas a sabiendas persuadieron o instigaron a un individuo menor 

de 18 años de edad para participar en actividad sexual ilegal; que la persona o personas utilizaron 

un medio o servicio de comercio interestatal para hacerlo; y que la persona o personas sabían que 

el individuo era menor de 18 años de edad. Conforme a la ley de Estados Unidos, "actividad 

sexual ilegal" incluye la producción de pornografía infantil. No es necesario que el Gobierno 

demuestre que la actividad sexual ocurrió en realidad. El "uso de un medio o servicio de comercio 

interestatal" incluye el uso de Internet o teléfono. A diferencia de la producción de pornografía 

infantil como se describió anteriormente, para este cargo Estados Unidos debe demostrar que el 

acusado sabía que la víctima era menor de edad. La pena máxima por este delito es la cadena 

perpetua, una multa de $250,000 en moneda de los Estados Unidos y puesta en libertad 

supervisada de por vida. 

20. El Cargo Cinco de la Acusación formal imputa a GIDI conspiración para distribuir pornografía 

infantil. En cuanto al delito en el Cargo Cinco, Estados Unidos debe demostrar que GIDI y una o 

más personas llegaron a un acuerdo, o conspiraron, para cometer el delito de distribución de 

pornografía infantil. Aquí Estados Unidos debe demostrar que una persona o personas acordaron o 

conspiraron para distribuir pornografía infantil; que la persona o personas sabían que el material 

era pornografía infantil; y que la pornografía infantil sería, utilizando algún medio o servicio de 

comercio interestatal, enviada o transportada en o que afecta el comercio interestatal por algún 

medio, incluyendo por computadora. La pena máxima por este delito son veinte años de prisión, 

una multa de $250,000 en moneda de los Estados Unidos y puesta en libertad supervisada de por 

vida. 

21. El Cargo Seis de la Acusación formal imputa a GIDI conspiración de acceso con la intención de 

ver pornografía infantil. En cuanto al delito en el Cargo Seis, Estados Unidos debe demostrar una 
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persona o personas acordaron o conspiraron para, cometer el delito de acceso con la intención de 

ver pornografía infantil. Estados Unidos debe demostrar que una persona o personas a sabiendas 

acordaron o conspiraron para el acceso con la intención de ver algún material que contuviera una 

imagen de pornografía infantil; que la persona o personas sabían que el material que contenía 

pornografía infantil; y que la imagen de pornografía infantil iba ser transportada utilizando algún 

medio o servicio de comercio interestatal, inclusive por computadora, o producida usando 

materiales que se habían enviado por correo, o enviados o transportados afectando el comercio 

interestatal por algún medio, inclusive por computadora. La pena máxima por este delito son 

veinte años de prisión, una multa de $250,000 en moneda de los Estados Unidos y puesta en 

libertad supervisada de por vida. 

22. Para ambos Cargos Cinco y Seis, el término "pornografía infantil" significa cualquier 

representación visual, inclusive video, fotografía o imagen, de conducta sexual explícita en la que: 

la producción de dicha representación visual implicó el uso de un menor que participaba en una 

conducta sexualmente explícita. Los términos "representación visual", "conducta sexual 

explícita", "medios o servicios de comercio interestatal" y "menor" todos tienen las mismas 

definiciones que las que se proporcionan más arriba. 
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RESUMEN DE LOS HECHOS 

23. Se adjunta como Prueba D la declaración jurada original del agente especial del FBI Adam 

Christensen, que proporciona información adicional sobre las actividades criminales y la 

identificación de GIDI. 

24. Basado en mi revisión de la declaración jurada del agente especial Christensen y las pruebas de 

este caso, doy fe de que las pruebas indican que GIDI es culpable de los delitos por los que se 

solicita la extradición. 

firma 

April N. Russo 
Fiscal Auxiliar de los Estados Unidos 
Distrito Este de Michigan 

FIRMADO Y SUSCRITO ANTE MÍ 
ESTE DÍA 3 DE abril DE 2019 

firma 
HON. R Steven Whalen 
Magistrado Juez de los Estados Unidos 
Distrito Este de Michigan 
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• 	LISTA DE PRUEBAS 

Prueba A 	Leyes aplicables 

Prueba B 	Copia certificada de la Acusación Formal, con fecha del 24 de enero de 2019 

Prueba C 	Copia certificada de la denuncia penal, con fecha del 26 de octubre de 2018 

Prueba D 	Copia certificada de la orden de aprehensión, con fecha del 26 de octubre de 2018 

Prueba E 	Declaración jurada del agente especial Adam Christensen del Buró Federal de 

Investigaciones 

Anexo 1 Documento nacional de identidad chileno de JEAN-DANIEL BRAVO GIDI 



PRUEBA A 

• 



La Prueba A contiene las partes aplicables de las leyes que describen los delitos 
que se imputa a Jean-Daniel BRAVO GIDI, la ley de prescripción y las 
sanciones que enfrenta si lo condenan. Los puntos suspensivos se utilizan para 
indicar partes de las leyes que se omiten porque estas partes no aplican al caso 
contra BRAVO GIDI. 

• 



• 
Sección 2 del Título 18 del Código de los Estados Unidos. Autores principales 

(a) Todo aquel que corneta un delito contra los Estados Unidos o ayude, instigue, aconseje, ordene, 
induzca o promueva su comisión, será castigado como si fuera el autor principal. 

(b) Todo aquel que intencionalmente cause que se realice un acto que, si hubiera sido realizado 
directamente por él u otra persona sería un delito contra los Estados Unidos, será castigado como si fuera 
el autor principal. 

Sección 2252A del Título 18 del Código de los Estados Unidos. Ciertas actividades relativas a 
materiales que constituyen o contienen pornografía infantil 

(a) Todo aquel que—.. . 

(2) reciba o distribuya a sabiendas— 

(A) cualquier pornografía infantil que haya sido enviada por correo postal o enviada o 
transportada por algún otro medio o servicio de comercio interestatal o extranjero por algún medio 
que afecte al comercio interestatal o extranjero, incluso por computadora; o 

(B) cualquier material que contenga pornografia infantil que haya sido enviado por correo postal 
o enviado o transportado por algún otro medio o servicio de comercio interestatal o extranjero por 
algún medio que afecte al comercio interestatal o extranjero, incluso por computadora; 

(5) o-- . . . 

(B) a sabiendas posee o tiene acceso a sabiendas con la intención de ver, algún libro, revista, 
publicación periódica, película, cinta de video, disco de computadora o cualquier otro material que contiene 
una imagen de pornografia infantil que haya sido enviado por correo postal o enviado o transportado por 
algún otro medio o servicio de comercio interestatal o extranjero por algún medio que afecte al comercio 
interestatal o extranjero, incluso por computadora, o que se produjo usando materiales que hayan sido 
enviados por correo postal o enviados o transportada por algún otro medio que afecte al comercio 
interestatal o extranjero, incluso por computadora; (b) 

(1) Todo aquel que viole, intente violar o conspire para violar el párrafo (1), (2), (3), (4), o (6) 
de la subsección (a) será multado bajo este título y encarcelado durante no menos de 5 años y no 
más de 20 años, pero, si dicha persona tiene una condena anterior conforme a de este capítulo, 
sección 1591, capítulo 71, capítulo 109A o capítulo 117, o conforme a la sección 920 del título 10 
(artículo 120 del Código Uniforme de Justicia Militar), o conforme a las leyes de cualquier Estado 
relativas a abuso sexual agravado, abuso sexual o conducta sexual abusiva que implica un menor o 
pupilo, o la producción, posesión, recepción, envío postal, venta, distribución, envío o transporte de 
pornografía infantil o tráfico sexual infantil, dicha persona será multada conforme a este título y 
encarcelada por no menos de 15 años ni más de 40 años. 

(2) Todo aquel que viole, intente violar o conspire para violar el párrafo (a)(5) será multado 
conforme a este título o encarcelado por no más de 10 años, o ambos, pero, si alguna imagen de 



pornografía infantil involucrada en el delito involucra a un menor impúber o un menor de edad que 
todavía no ha cumplido los 12 años de edad, dicha persona será multada conforme a este título y 
encarcelada por no más de 20 años, o si dicha persona tiene una condena anterior conforme a este 
capítulo, el capítulo 71, el capítulo 109A o el capítulo 117, o conforme a la sección 920 del título 
10 (artículo 120 del Código Uniforme de Justicia Militar), o conforme a las leyes de cualquier 
Estado relativas a abuso sexual agravado, abuso sexual o conducta sexual abusiva que involucra a 
un menor o pupilo, o la producción, posesión, recepción, envío postal, venta, distribución, envío o 
transporte de pornografía infantil, dicha persona será multada conforme a este título y encarcelada 
por no menos de 10 años ni más de 20 años 

(g) Actividades de explotación infantil.— 

(1) Todo aquel que se involucre en actividades de explotación infantil será multado conforme a 
este título y encarcelado por un período de tiempo que no será inferior a 20 años o cadena perpetua. 

(2) Para los fines de esta sección, una persona se involucra en actividades de explotación infantil 
si la persona viola la sección 1591, sección 1201, si la víctima es menor de edad, o el capítulo 109A 
(que implica una víctima menor de edad), 110 (a excepción de las secciones 2257 y 2257A) o 117 
(que implica una víctima menor de edad), como parte de una serie de violaciones de delito grave 
que constituyen tres o más incidentes separados y la participación de más de una víctima, y comete 
esos delitos en concierto con otras tres o más personas. 

Sección 2251 del Título 18 del Código de los Estados Unidos. Explotación sexual infantil 

(a) Cualquier persona que contrate, utilice, persuada, induzca, seduzca o coaccione a un menor de edad para 
que participe o para que consiga que otro participe, o que transporte a un menor afectando al comercio 
interestatal o extranjero, o lo haga en territorio o posesión de los Estados Unidos, con la intención de que 
dicho menor sea partícipe de una conducta sexualmente explícita con el fin de producir una representación 
visual de dicha conducta o con el propósito de transmitir una representación visual en vivo de dicha 
conducta, será castigado conforme a lo dispuesto en la subsección (e), si dicha persona sabe o puede saber 
que tal representación visual será transportada o transmitida por algún medio o servicio de comercio 
interestatal o extranjero o afectando dicho comercio interestatal o extranjero, o enviado por correo postal, 
si esa representación visual se produce o se transmite utilizando materiales que han sido enviados por correo 
postal, o enviados o transportados por algún medio que afecte al comercio interestatal o extranjero, incluso 
por computadora, o si dicha representación visual de hecho ha sido transportada o transmitida utilizando 
algún medio o servicio del comercio interestatal o extranjero, o por algún medio que afecte al comercio 
interestatal o extranjero o por correo postal.... 

(e) Todo aquel que viole, intente violar o conspire para violar, esta sección será multado bajo este título y 
encarcelado por no menos de 15 años ni más de 30 años, pero si esa persona tiene una condena anterior 
conforme a este capítulo, la sección 1591, el capítulo 71, el capítulo 109A o el capítulo 117, o conforme a 
la sección 920 del título 10 (artículo 120 del Código Uniforme de Justicia Militar), o conforme a las leyes 
de cualquier Estado en relación con el abuso sexual agravado, ahuso sexual, contacto sexual abusivo que 
implica un menor o pupilo, o tráfico sexual de niños, o la producción, posesión, recepción, envío postal, 
venta, distribución, envío o transporte de pornografía infantil, dicha persona será multada conforme a este 
título y encarcelada por no menos de 25 años ni más de 50 años, pero si dicha persona tiene 2 o más condenas 
anteriores conforme a este capítulo, el capítulo 71, el capítulo 109A o el capítulo 117, o conforme a la 
sección 920 del título 10 (artículo 120 del Código Uniforme de Justicia Militar), o 



• onforme a las leyes de cualquier Estado relativas a la explotación sexual de niños, dicha persona será 
multada conforme a este título y será encarcelada por no menos de 35 años ni más de cadena perpetua. 
Cualquier organización que viole, intente violar o conspire para violar esta sección será multada conforme 
a este título. Todo aquel que, en el curso de un delito previsto en esta sección, se involucre en conducta que 
resulta en la muerte de una persona, será castigado con la muerte o encarcelado por no menos de 30 años o 
a cadena perpetua. 

Sección 2422 del Título 18 del Código de los Estados Unidos. Coacción y persuasión 

(b) Todo aquel que, mediante el correo postal o algún servicio o medio de comercio interestatal o extranjero, 
o dentro de la jurisdicción marítima y territorial especial de los Estados Unidos convence a sabiendas, 
induce, incita o coacciona a cualquier individuo que no ha alcanzado la edad de 18 años, a dedicarse a la 
prostitución o cualquier actividad sexual por la que cualquier persona puede ser acusada de un delito, o 
intenta hacerlo, será multado bajo este título y encarcelado por no menos de 10 años o a cadena perpetua. 

Sección 2256 del Título 18 del Código de los Estados Unidos. Definiciones para el Capítulo 

A los efectos de este capítulo, el término— 

(1) "menor" significa cualquier persona menor de dieciocho años de edad; 

(2) (A) A excepción de lo dispuesto en el subpárrafo (B), "conducta sexual explícita" significa real o 

simulada/o— 

(i) coito, incluyendo genital-genital, oral-genital, anal-genital u oral-

anal, ya sea entre personas del mismo o diferente sexo; 

(ii) bestialismo; 

(iii) masturbación; 

(iv) abuso sádico o masoquista; o 

(y) 	exhibición lasciva de los genitales o área púbica de cualquier persona; 

(B) 	A los efectos de la subsección 8(B) [1] de esta sección, "conducta sexual explícita" 
significa— 

(i) coito gráfico, incluyendo genital-genital, oral-genital, genital- anal u oral-anal, ya 
sea entre personas del mismo o diferente sexo, o coito simulado lascivo en el que se exhiben 
los genitales, los pechos o el área púbica de cualquier persona; 

(ii) gráfico o simulado lascivo; 

(I) bestialismo; 

(II) masturbación; o 



(III) 	abuso sádico o masoquista; o 

(iii) exhibición lasciva gráfica o simulada de los genitales o área púbica de cualquier persona; 

(3) "producir" significa producción, dirección, fabricación, emisión, publicación o publicidad; 

(4) "organización" significa una persona distinta de un individuo; 

(5) "representación visual" incluye película sin revelar y cinta de video, datos almacenados en un disco 
de computadora o por medios electrónicos capaces de convertirse en una imagen visual, y los datos 
capaces de convertirse en una imagen visual que se han transmitido por algún medio, estén o no 
almacenados en un formato permanente; 

(6)"computadora" tiene el significado dado a ese término en la sección 1030 de este título; 

(7) "custodia o control" incluye la supervisión temporal o responsabilidad sobre un menor obtenida 

legal o ilegalmente; 

(8) "pornografía infantil" significa cualquier representación visual, incluyendo cualquier fotografia, 
película, video, imagen o una imagen o foto generada por computadora, ya sea fabricada o producida 
por medios electrónicos, mecánicos, o de otro tipo, de conducta sexual explícita, en la que 

(A) 	la producción de dicha representación visual implica el uso de un menor 
participando en una conducta sexualmente explícita; 

(3) 	tal representación visual es una imagen digital, imagen de computadora o imagen 
generada por computadora que es la de un menor, o indistinguible a la de un menor 
participando en una conducta sexualmente explícita; o 

(C) 	tal representación visual ha sido creada, adaptada o modificada para parecer que 
un menor no identificable está participando en una conducta sexualmente explícita. 

(9) "menor identificable"— 

(A) 	significa una persona— 

(i) 

que era menor de edad en el momento de crear, adaptar o modificar la 
representación visual; o 

(II) 	cuya imagen siendo menor de edad se utilizó en la creación, adaptación o 
modificación de la representación visual; y 

(fi) que es reconocible como una persona real por la cara de la persona, semejanza u otra 
característica distintiva, tal como una marca de nacimiento única u otra característica 
reconocible; y 



• 	(B) 	no se interpretará para exigir la prueba de la identidad real del menor 
identificable. 

(10) "gráfico", cuando se usa con respecto a una representación de conducta sexual explícita, 
significa que un espectador puede observar cualquier parte de los genitales o área púbica de cualquier 
persona o animal representado durante cualquier parte del tiempo que está siendo representada la 
conducta sexual explícita; y 

(11) el término "indistinguible" que se usa con respecto a una representación, significa 
prácticamente indistinguible, en que la representación es tal que una persona común que viese la 
representación llegaría a la conclusión de que la representación es la de un menor de edad real 
involucrado en una conducta sexualmente explícita. Esta definición no se aplica a las representaciones 
que son dibujos, caricaturas, esculturas o pinturas que representan a menores o adultos. 

Sección 2253 del Título 18 del Código de los Estados Unidos. Decomiso penal 

(a) Propiedad sujeta a decomiso penal.--Una persona que haya sido condenada por un delito previsto en 
este capítulo que implica una representación visual que se describe en la sección 2251, 2251A, 2252, 2252A 
o 2260 de este capítulo, o que es condenado por un delito previsto en la sección de 2252B de este capítulo, 
o que haya sido condenada por un delito previsto en el capítulo 109A, perderá a favor de los Estados Unidos 
su interés en-- 

(1) cualquier representación visual descrita en la sección 2251, 2251A, o 22522  2252A, 2252B, o 
2260 de este capítulo, o cualquier libro, revista, publicación periódica, película, cinta de video o cualquier 
otro material que contenga dicha representación visual, la cual fue producida, transportada, enviada por 
correo postal, enviada o recibida en violación de este capítulo; 

(2) cualesquier bienes inmuebles o muebles que constituyan o que se puedan identificar como 
procedentes de los beneficios brutos u otras ganancias obtenidas por medio de dicho delito; y 

(3) cualesquier bienes inmuebles o muebles utilizados o destinados a ser utilizados para cometer o 
promover la comisión de dicho delito o cualesquier bienes que se puedan identificar como procedentes de 
dichos bienes. 

(b) La sección 413 de la Ley de Sustancias Controladas (sección 853 del Título 21 del Código de 
los Estados Unidos), con la excepción de las subsecciones (a) y (d), se aplica al decomiso penal de 
la propiedad de conformidad con la subsección (a). 



• cción 2428 del Título 18 del Código de los Estados Unidos. Decomisos 

(a) En general .— El tribunal, al imponer la pena a cualquier persona culpable de una violación de este 
capítulo, ordenará, además de cualquier otra sentencia impuesta y con independencia de cualquier 
disposición de la ley del Estado, que dicha persona pierda a favor de los Estados Unidos-- 

(1) el interés de dicha persona en cualesquier bienes, muebles o inmuebles, que fueron utilizados o 
destinados a ser utilizados para cometer o facilitar la comisión de dicha violación; y 

(2) cualesquier bienes, inmuebles o muebles, que constituyan o se deriven de cualquier ganancia que 
la persona haya obtenido, directa o indirectamente, como resultado de dicha violación. 

(b) Bienes sujetos a decomiso.-- 

(1) En general. --Lo siguiente estará sujeto a decomiso por los Estados Unidos y ningún derecho de 
propiedad deberá existir en ellos: 

(A) Cualesquier bienes, inmuebles o muebles, utilizados o destinados a ser utilizados para cometer 
o promover la comisión de cualquier delito de este capítulo. 

(B) Cualesquier bienes, inmuebles o muebles, que constituyan o se deriven de las ganancias 
provenientes de cualquier violación de este capítulo. 

(2) Aplicabilidad del capítulo 46.-- Las disposiciones del capítulo 46 del presente título relativas 
a los decomisos civiles se aplicarán a cualquier embargo o decomiso civil conforme a esta 
subsección. 



• LEY DE PRESCRIPCIÓN 

Sección 3299 del Título 18 del Código de los Estados Unidos. 	Secuestro de niños y delitos 
sexuales infantiles 

No obstante las estipulaciones de cualquier otra ley, se puede presentar una acusación formal o entablar 
una querella en cualquier momento sin carácter limitativo por cualquier delito previsto en la sección 1201 
que implique una víctima menor de edad, y por cualquier delito grave previsto en el capítulo 109A, 110 (a 
excepción de la sección [S] 2257 y 2257A) o 117, o de la sección 1591. 



PRUEBA B 

41 



TRIBUNAL DE DISTRITO DE ESTADOS UNIDOS 

PARA EL DISTRITO ESTE DE MICHIGAN 

DIVISIÓN SUR 

ESTADOS UNIDOS DE AMÉRICA, 

Demandante: 

• 
Caso: 4:19-cr-20050 
Juez: Leitman, Matthew F. 
MJ: Davis, Stephanie Dawkins 
Presentado: 24-ene-2019 a las 03:45 P.M. 
ASUNTO SELLADO (dat) 

contra 	 VIOL: Sección 2252A(g) del Título 18 del Código de los 
EE. UU. 

Sección 2251(a) del Título 18 del Código de los 
EE. UU. 

Sección 2251(e) del Título 18 del Código de los 

EE. UU. 

Sección 2422(b) del Título 18 del Código de los 
EE. UU. 

Sección 2252A(a)(2) del Título 18 del Código de los 
EE. UU. 

Sección 2252A(b)(1) del Título 18 del Código de los 
EE. UU. 

Sección 2253 del título 18 del Código de los EE. UU. 

Sección 2 del título 18 del Código de los EE. UU. 

Sección 2252A(a)(5)(B) del Título 18 del Código de los 
EE. UU. 

Sección 2252A(b)(2) del Título 18 del Código de los 
EE. UU. 

A-1, JEAN-DANIEL BRAVO GIDI, 

Acusado. 

[Sello redondo ilegible] 

Por la presente certifico que lo anterior es una 
copia fiel del original archivado en esta 
Oficina. 
SECRETARIO, TRIBUNAL DE 
DISTRITO DE LOS EE. UU. 
DISTRITO ESTE DE MICHIGAN 
POR:  [firma]  

Subsecretario 



e 	
ACUSACIÓN FORMAL 

EL GRAN JURADO HACE LA SIGUIENTE ACUSACIÓN: 

En todo momento en esta Acusación formal: 

1. La Víctima menor de edad número 13 (en adelante "MV-13") era residente en el 

Distrito Este de Michigan y era una niña menor de 18 años. 

2. Durante los períodos de tiempo cubiertos en esta Acusación formal, JEAN-

DANIEL BRAVO GIDI, junto con WILLIAM BROOKS DAVIDSON, AARON 

WRIGHT, NOEL EISLEY, TERRY KOVAC, BRET W. MASSEY, FELIPE 

DOMINGUEZ-MEIJA, WILLIAM T. PHILLIPS y ERIC JAMES ROBINSON, 

trabajaron juntos en un grupo, con otras personas conocidas y no conocidas por el Gran 

Jurado, para convencer y tratar de convencer a víctimas menores de edad, tanto conocidas 

como no conocidas por el Gran Jurado, de que participaran en una conducta sexual 

explícita, como se define en la sección 2256(2) del Título 18 del Código de los Estados 

Unidos, ante una cámara web y grabar esta conducta sexualmente explícita. 

Específicamente, JEAN-DANIEL BRAVO GIDI, junto con WILLIAM BROOKS 

DAVIDSON, AARON WRIGHT, NOEL EISLEY, TERRY KOVAC, BRET W. 

MASSEY, FELIPE DOMINGUEZ-MEIJA, WILLIAM T. PHILLIPS y ERIC JAMES 

ROBINSON, y otras personas tanto conocidas como no conocidas por el Gran Jurado, 

conspiraron juntos en conversaciones de chat a través de Internet para atraer a víctimas 

menores de edad a uno o más sitios web basados en la sala de chat. Una vez que las víctimas 

menores de edad 
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e 	aparecían en estos sitios web basados en las salas de chat, JEAN-DANIEL BRAVO GIDI, 

junto con WILLIAM BROOKS DAVIDSON, AARON WRIGHT, NOEL EISLEY, 

TERRY KOVAC, BRET W. MASSEY, FELIPE DOMINGUEZ- MEIJA, WILLIAM T. 

PHILLIPS y ERIC JAMES ROBINSON, y otras personas tanto conocidas corno no 

conocidas por el Gran Jurado, persuadieron e intentaron persuadir a las víctimas menores 

de edad de que participaran en actos sexuales, y mostraran lascivamente sus genitales y 

zona púbica, en la cámara web. JEAN-DANIEL BRAVO GIDI, junto con WILLIAM 

BROOKS DAVIDSON, AARON WRIGHT, NOEL EISLEY, TERRY KOVAC, BRET 

W. MASSEY, FELIPE DOMINGUEZ-MEIJA, WILLIAM T. PHILLIPS y ERIC JAMES 

ROBINSON, y otras personas tanto conocidas como no conocidas por el Gran Jurado, 

hicieron grabaciones de esta actividad sexual y las distribuyeron entre ellos y a otras 

personas tanto conocidas como no conocidas por el Gran Jurado. 
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e CARGO UNO 

(Actividad de explotación infantil, sección 2252A(g) 
del Título 18 del Código de los Estados Unidos) 

Los párrafos 1-2 de esta Acusación formal se incorporan aquí por referencia. 

Entre las fechas del 22 de octubre de 2016 y el 29 de noviembre de 2018, en el en el Distrito Este 

de Michigan, y en otros lugares, el acusado JEAN-DANIEL BRAVO GIDI, junto con WILLIAM 

BROOKS DAVIDSON, AARON WRIGHT, NOEL EISLEY, TERRY KOVAC, BRET W. 

MASSEY, FELIPE DOMINGUEZ-MEIJA, WILLIAM T. PHILLIPS y ERIC JAMES 

ROBINSON (cada uno de ellos imputado en otro lugar), y otras personas tanto conocidas como 

no conocidas por el Gran Jurado, se involucraron a sabiendas en una actividad de explotación 

infantil al violar los capítulos 110 y 117 del Título 18 del Código de los Estados Unidos 

(especificamente, la sección 2251 del Título 18 del Código de los Estados Unidos, la sección 

2422(b) del Título 18 del Código de los Estados Unidos y la sección 2252A del Título 18 del 

Código de los Estados Unidos), como parte de una serie de violaciones de delito grave que 

constituyeron tres o más incidentes separados e involucraron a más de una víctima menor de edad, 

cometiendo estos delitos en concierto con otras tres o más personas; todo ello en violación de la 

Sección 2252A(g) del Título 18 del Código de Estados Unidos. 
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CARGO DOS 

(Conspiración para producir pornografía infantil, secciones 2251(a), 2251(e) 
del Título 18 del Código de los Estados Unidos) 

Entre las fechas del 22 de octubre de 2016 y e129 de noviembre de 2018, en el Distrito Este 

de Michigan, y en otros lugares, el acusado JEAN-DANIEL BRAVO GIDI; junto con WILLIAM 

BROOKS DAVIDSON, AARON WRIGHT, NOEL EISLEY, TERRY KOVAC, BRET W. 

MASSEY, FELIPE DOMTNGUEZ-MEIJA, WILLIAM T. PHILLIPS y ERIC JAMES 

ROBINSON (cada uno de ellos imputado en otros lugares), a sabiendas se aliaron, conspiraron, se 

asociaron para delinquir y acordaron entre ellos y con otras personas, tanto conocidas como no 

conocidas por el Gran Jurado, para emplear, usar, persuadir, inducir, tentar y obligar a una o más 

menores de edad a participar en una conducta sexualmente explícita como se define en la sección 

2256(2) del Título 18 del Código de los Estados Unidos, con el propósito de producir una 

representación visual de dicha conducta y transmitir en vivo una representación visual de dicha 

conducta, sabiendo y teniendo motivos para saber que tal representación visual sería transportada 

y transmitida por algún medio o servicio de comercio interestatal y extranjero, y afectaría dicho 

comercio interestatal o extranjero; dicha representación visual fue producida y transmitida 

utilizando materiales que habían sido enviados por correo postal, enviados y transportados por 

algún medio que afectó al comercio interestatal y extranjero, incluso por computadora; y dicha 

representación visual fue transportada y transmitida utilizando algún medio o servicio del 

comercio interestatal y extranjero, y por algún medio que afectó al comercio interestatal y 

extranjero; todo ello en violación de las Secciones 2251(a), (e) del Título 18 del Código de los 

Estados Unidos. 

i 
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CARGO TRES  

(Producción de pornografía infantil, secciones 2, 2251(a) 
del Título 18 del Código de los Estados Unidos) 

Desde el 22 de octubre de 2016, o alrededor de esa fecha, y hasta aproximadamente marzo 

de 2017, en el Distrito Este de Michigan, yen otras partes, el acusado JEAN-DANIEL BRAVO 

GIDI, junto con TERRY KOVAC, BRET W. MASSEY, FELIPE DOMINGUEZ-MEIJA y 

WILLIAM T. PHILLIPS (cada uno de ellos imputado en otros lugares), y otras personas tanto 

conocidas como no conocidas por el Gran Jurado, intentaron y emplearon, usaron, persuadieron, 

indujeron, tentaron y coaccionaron a sabiendas a una menor, a saber: MV-13, a participar en una 

conducta sexualmente explícita como se define en la sección 2256(2) del Título 18 del Código de 

los Estados Unidos, con el propósito de producir una representación visual de dicha conducta y 

transmitir en vivo una representación visual de dicha conducta, sabiendo y teniendo motivos para 

saber que tal representación visual sería transportada y transmitida por algún medio o servicio de 

comercio interestatal y extranjero, y afectaría dicho comercio interestatal o extranjero; dicha 

representación visual fue producida y transmitida utilizando materiales que habían sido enviados 

por correo postal, enviados y transportados por algún medio que afectó al comercio interestatal y 

extranjero, incluso por computadora; y dicha representación visual fue transportada y transmitida 

utilizando algún medio o servicio del comercio interestatal y extranjero, y por algún medio que 

afectó al comercio interestatal y extranjero; todo ello en violación de las Secciones 2, 2251(a), (e) 

del Título 18 del Código de los Estados Unidos. 



CARGO CUATRO 

(Coacción y persuasión de un menor Secciones 2, 2422(b) 
del Título 18 del Código de los Estados Unidos). 

Desde el 22 de octubre de 2016 o alrededor de esa fecha y hasta aproximadamente marzo 

de 2017, en el Distrito Este de Michigan y en otras partes, el acusado JEAN-DANIEL BRAVO 

GIDI, junto con TERRY KOVAC, BRET W. MASSEY, FELIPE DOMINGUEZ-MEIJA y 

WILLIAM T. PHILLIPS (cada uno de ellos imputado en otros lugares), y otras personas tanto 

conocidas corno no conocidas por el Gran Jurado, utilizaron a sabiendas un servicio y medios de 

comercio interestatal y extranjero (a saber: Internet) para persuadir, inducir, tentar y coaccionar 

a una persona que no había alcanzado la edad de 18 años (a saber: MV-13) de que participara en 

una actividad sexual por la que a cualquier persona podría imputársele un delito penal, entre otros, 

la producción de pornografía infantil, como se describe en la sección 2256 (8) del Título 18 del 

Código de los Estados Unidos, todo ello en violación de las Secciones 2, 2422 (b) del Título 18 

del Código de los Estados Unidos. 
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CARGO CINCO 

(Conspiración para distribuir pornografía infantil, secciones 2252A(a)(2), 2252A(b)(1) 
del Título 18 del Código de los Estados Unidos) 

Entre las fechas del 22 de octubre de 2016 y el 29 de noviembre de 2018, en el Distrito 

Este de Michigan, y en otros lugares, el acusado JEAN-DANIEL BRAVO GIDI, junto con 

WILLIAM BROOKS DAVIDSON, AARON WRIGHT, NOEL EISLEY, TERRY KOVAC, 

BRET W. MASSEY, FELIPE DOMINGUEZ-MEIJA, WILLIAM T. PHILLIPS y ERIC JAMES 

ROBINSON (cada uno de ellos imputado en otros lugares), se aliaron conspiraron, se asociaron 

para delinquir y acordaron entre ellos y con otras personas, tanto conocidas como no conocidas por 

el Gran Jurado para distribuir a sabiendas pornografía infantil, según se define en la sección 2256(8) 

del Título 18 del Código de los Estados Unidos, y las imágenes distribuidas habían sido enviadas y 

transportadas a través de Internet, un medio y servicio de comercio interestatal, y habían sido 

enviadas y transportadas por algún medio o servicio de comercio interestatal y extranjero, incluso 

por computadora; todo ello en violación de la Sección 2252A(a)(2) y 2252A(b)(1) del Título 18 del 

Código de los Estados Unidos. 



e CARGO SEIS 

(Conspiración de acceso con intención de ver pornografía infantil, 
secciones 2252A(a)(5)(B), 2252A(b)(2) del Título 18 del Código de los Estados Unidos) 

Entre las fechas del 22 de octubre de 2016 y el 29 de noviembre de 2018, en el Distrito 

Este de Michigan, y en otros lugares, el acusado JEAN-DANIEL BRAVO GIDI, junto con 

WILLIAM BROOKS DAVIDSON, AARON WRIGHT, NOEL EISLEY, TERRY KOVAC, 

BRET W. MASSEY, FELIPE DOMINGUEZ-MEIJA, WILLIAM T. PHILLIPS y ERIC JAMES 

ROBINSON (cada uno de ellos imputado en otros lugares), se aliaron, conspiraron, se asociaron 

para delinquir, y acordaron entre ellos y con otras personas tanto conocidas como desconocidas 

para el Gran Jurado, para el acceso con la intención de ver a sabiendas material que contenía una o 

más imágenes de pornografía infantil, según se define en la sección 2256(8)(A) del Título 18 del 

Código de los Estados Unidos, que involucró a uno o más menores prepúberes y uno o más menores 

de edad que no habían cumplido los doce (12) años de edad, y que habían sido enviado y 

transportado utilizando algún medio y servicio de comercio interestatal y extranjero, había sido 

enviado y transportado afectando el comercio interestatal y extranjero, y fue producido utilizando 

materiales que habían sido enviados por correo postal, enviados y transportados por algún medio 

que afectó al comercio interestatal y extranjero, incluso por computadora, todo ello en violación de 

la sección 2252A(a)(5)(B) y 2252(A)(b)(2) del Título 18 del Código de los Estados Unidos. 
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CLÁUSULA DE DECOMISO 

1. Las alegaciones contenidas en esta Acusación formal se vuelven a alegar y se 

incorporan por referencia como si se hubieran expuesto en su totalidad en este documento con el 

propósito de alegar el decomiso de conformidad con la Sección 2253 del Título 18 del Código de los 

Estados Unidos y la Sección 2428 del Título 18 del Código de los Estados Unidos. 

2. Si es declarado culpable de un delito que se imputa y se expone anteriormente, JEAN-

DANIEL BRAVO GIDI, perderá a favor de los Estados Unidos cualquier y todos los materiales y los 

bienes utilizados y destinados a ser utilizados en la distribución, posesión y transporte de 

representaciones visuales de menores involucradas en una conducta sexualmente explícita, y cualquier y 

todos los bienes, muebles o inmuebles, que constituyan o que se puedan identificar como procedentes de 

los beneficios brutos u otras ganancias obtenidas por medio del delito. 

APROBADO POR EL GRAN JURADO 

PRESIDENTE DEL GRAN JURADO 

MATTHEW SCHNEIDER 

FISCAL DE LOS ESTADOS UNIDOS 

 

[firma] 

 

[firma]  

APRIL N. RUSSO 

KEVIN M. MULCAHY 

Fiscales Auxiliares de los Estados Unidos 

211 West Fort Street, Ste. 2001 

Detroit, MI 48226-3220 

Teléfono: (313) 226-9129 

Correo electrónico: april.russousdoj.gov  

[Sello redondo ilegible] 

Por la presente certifico que lo anterior es 
una copia fiel del original archivado en esta 
Oficina. 
SECRETARIO, TRIBUNAL DE 
DISTRITO DE LOS EE. UU. 
DISTRITO ESTE DE MICHIGAN 
POR:  [firma]  

Subsecretario 

MATTHEW A. ROTH 

Fiscal Auxiliar de los Estados Unidos 

Jefe, Unidad de Delitos Graves 

211 W. Fort Street, Suite 2001 

Detroit, Michigan 48226 

Correo electrónico: mroth(M,usa.doj.gov  

A fecha: 24 de enero de 2019 
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PRUEBA C 

• 



FISCAL AUXILIAR DE LOS EE. UU: April N. Russo 	Teléfono: (313) 226-9126 
AO 442LRev. 11(11) Orden de Aprehensión 	A eigses~:ALIam Christensen Teléfono 313 965-2323 

e 	TRIBUNAL DE DISTRITO DE LOS ESTADOS UNIDOS 
para el 

Distrito Este de Michigan 

Estados Unidos de América 

c. 

Jean-Daniel Bravo Gidi 

Caso: 2: I8-mj-30569 
Asignado a: Sin asignar 
Fecha de asignación: 16/oct/2018 
Descripción: CMP EE. UU. c. ASUNTO SELLADO (SO) 

ORDEN DE APREHENSIÓN 

A: Cualquier oficial del orden público autorizado 

[Sello redondo ilegible] 

Por la presente certifico que lo anterior es una 
copia fiel del original archivado en esta 
Oficina. 
SECRETARIO, TRIBUNAL DE DISTRITO 
DE LOS EE. UU. 
DISTRITO ESTE DE MICHIGAN 
POR:  [firma] 	  

Subsecretario 

SE LE ORDENA arrestar y llevar ante un magistrado juez de los Estados Unidos sin demora innecesaria a 
(nombre de la persona a ser arrestada) Jean-Daniel Bravo Gidi 	  
quién está acusado de un delito o violación basado en el siguiente documento presentado ante el tribunal: 

D Acusación formal 	O Acusación de reemplazo 	O Querella 	O Querella de reemplazo 
	

E Denuncia 

O Petición por violación de libertad probatoria 	O Petición por violación de libertad supervisada 

O Notificación de violación 	O Orden del Tribunal 

Este delito se describe brevemente de la siguiente manera: 

Secciones 2251(a) y (e), 2422, 2252A(a)(2) y (b)(1) y 2252A(a)(5)(B) y (b)(2) del Título 18 del Código de los Estados Unidos 

Actividad de Explotación Infantil, Producción y conspiración para producir pornografía infantil, seducción de un menor, recepción 
y conspiración para recibir pornografía infantil, acceso con intención de ver pornografía infantil y conspiración para acceder con 
intento de ver pornografía infantil 

ANTHONY P. PATTI 
Fecha: 	26 de octubre de 2018 

      

Ciudad y estado: Detroit, Michig.An 

  

Firma del funcionario emisor 
ANTHONY P. PATTI 

MAGISTRADO JUEZ DE LOS ESTADOS UNIDOS  
Nombre y cargo en letras de molde 

     

Diligenciamiento 
Esta orden de aprehensión se recibió el (fecha) 	 , y la persona fue aprehendida el (fecha) 

en (ciudad y estado) 

Fecha: 

Firma del agente que hizo la aprehensión 

Nombre y cargo en letras de imprenta 

Distribución: Original-Tribunal - 1 copia-Alguacil de EE. UU. - 2 copias Fiscal de EE. UU. 



PRUEBA D 

II 



FISCAL AUXILIAR DE LOS EE. UU: April N. Russo 	Teléfono: (313) 226-9126 
AO 91 (Rev. 11/11) Denuncia Penal 	 Aliente especial:_ 	Adam Christensen Teléfono 	(313)965-2323 	 • 	TRIBUNAL DE DISTRITO DE LOS ESTADOS UNIDOS 

para el 
Distrito Este de Michigan 

Estados Unidos de América 

c. 

Jean-Daniel Bravo Gidi 

Caso: 2:18-mj-30569 
Asignado a: Sin asignar 
Fecha de asignación: 16/oct/2018 
Descripción: CMP EE. UU. c. ASUNTO SELLADO (SO) 

DENUNCIA PENAL 

Yo, el demandante en este caso, declaro que lo siguiente es cierto ami mejor saber y entender. 

En esta(s) fecha(s) o alrededor de esta(s) fecha(s) de diciembre de 2014 hasta el 2 de marzo de 2018 en el condado de Wayne yen otras partes 

del Distrito 	Este 	de 	Michigan 	etilos acusado(s) violó/violaron: 

Sección del Código 

Sección 2252A(a)(2) y (b)(1) del Título 18 del Código de los EE. UU. 
Sección 2252A(a)(5)(b) y (b)(2) del Título 18 del Código de los EE. UU. 
Sección 2251(a) y (e) del Título 18 del Código de los EE. UU. 
Sección 2422 del Título 18 del Código de los EE. UU. 
Sección 2252A(g)(2) del Título 18 del Código de los EE. UU. 

Descripción del delito 

Actividad de explotación infantil, Producción y conspiración para 
producir pomografia infantil, recepción y conspiración para recibir 
pomografia infantil, distribución y conspiración para distribuir 
pomografia infantil, incitación de un menor, acceso con la intención 
de ver pornografia infantil y conspiración para acceder con la 
intención de ver pornografia infantil 

Esta denuncia penal se basa en estos hechos: 

Ver la Declaración jurada adjunta 

[Sello redondo ilegible] 

Por la presente certifico que lo anterior es una 
copia fiel del original archivado en esta 
Oficina. 
SECRETARIO, TRIBUNAL DE DISTRITO 
DE LOS EE. UU. 
DISTRITO ESTE DE MICHIGAN 
POR:  [finnal 	  

Subsecretario 

Continúa en la hoja adjunta. 

Firma del denunciante 

Agente especial Adam Christensen, FBE 
Nombre y cargo en letras de imprenta 

Jurado ame mi y firmado en mi presencia. 

26 OCT 2018 

Fecha: 

Ciudad y estado:  Detroit Michigan  

ANTHONY P. PATTI 

Firma del fue: 

Hon. Anthony P. Patti Magistrado Juez de los EE. UU. 
Nombre y cargo en letras de imprenta 



PRUEBA E 

41 



e 	TRIBUNAL DE DISTRITO DE LOS ESTADOS UNIDOS 

DISTRITO ESTE DE MICHIGAN 

DECLARACIÓN JURADA EN APOYO  
DE LA SOLICITUD DE EXTRADICIÓN 

ESTADOS UNIDOS DE AMÉRICA 

contra 

JEAN-DANIEL BRAVO GIDI 

Caso Núm. 19-CR-20050 

Guardado 
Abril 3,2019 
Oficina de Corte 
Distrital de 
EEUU 

Yo, Adam Christensen, habiendo prestado juramento debidamente, declaro y depongo lo siguiente: 

1. Resido en los Estados Unidos de América. 

2. Soy un agente especial del Buró Federal de Investigaciones (FBI) en Detroit, Michigan, y he 

estado empleado como tal durante aproximadamente 9 años. 

3. El FBI es una de las agencias del gobierno de Estados Unidos encargadas de la aplicación de las 

leyes federales de explotación infantil y pornografía infantil. Como agente especial del FBI, he 

llevado a cabo personalmente y he participado en numerosas investigaciones que han dado lugar a 

la detención y condena de los responsables de la producción, distribución y posesión de material de 

explotación infantil. 

4. Sobre la base de mi formación y experiencia como agente del FBI, estoy familiarizado con los 

medios y métodos que los individuos involucrados en la producción de materiales de explotación 

infantil utilizan para crear y distribuir estos materiales, incluidos los métodos utilizados para 

atraer a menores de edad con el fin de lograr la producción de estos materiales. También estoy 

bien informado sobre las leyes penales de los Estados Unidos, en particular los que se refieren a 

la actividad de explotación infantil, la incitación de un menor, conspiración para producir y 

producción de pornografía infantil, y conspiración para acceder con la intención de ver, recibir y 

distribuir materiales de explotación infantil. 
Por medio del presente doy fe y certifico, que 
esta es una copia verdadera y la original esta 
registrada en esta oficina 

firma 	 
Empleado, Corte Distrital Este de Michigan 
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e 	En el desempeño de mis funciones, me he familiarizado con los cargos y las pruebas en el caso de 

Estados Unidos contra Jean-Daniel Bravo Gidi, (Caso Núm. 19-CR-20050) (también conocido con 

los Núms.4:19-CR-20050 y 2:18-MJ-30569). Estos cargos resultan de una investigación del Buró 

Federal de Investigaciones (FBI), que reveló que al menos desde octubre de 2016 hasta noviembre 

de 2018, JEAN-DANIEL BRAVO GIDI (GIDI), un ciudadano de Chile, era un miembro de una 

banda de explotación infantil. La mayoría de los miembros del grupo de GIDI son ciudadanos de 

Estados Unidos que residían en los Estados Unidos durante la duración de la conducta delictiva. 

El grupo trabajó conjuntamente, pretendiendo ser adolescentes, para persuadir a niñas menores de 

edad a participar en actividades sexuales ante una cámara web, a menudo con la grabación de la 

actividad GIDI utilizó varios alias durante esta conducta criminal, incluidos, entre otros, DANNY, 

LUZ y KUROHIGEXYONKO. 

I. 	RESUMEN 

6. Esta declaración jurada es parte de una investigación en curso en relación con la explotación 

sexual de niñas, específicamente menores preadolescentes y adolescentes, en un sitio web 

basado en una sala de chat. Para proteger la integridad de la investigación, el sitio web será 

mencionado a lo largo de esta declaración como Sitio Web A. 

7. La investigación revela que el Sitio Web A es utilizado principalmente por hombres adultos que 

tratan de explotar sexualmente a las adolescentes. Estos hombres se hacen pasar por niños 

adolescentes, niñas adolescentes u otros para persuadir a las víctimas a que participen en actividad 

sexual explícita ante la cámara durante el streaming en vivo de los chats. En el transcurso de esta 

investigación, el FBI ha identificado más de 100 víctimas menores de edad, con docenas más aún 

no identificadas, quienes se quitan la ropa, participan en actividad sexual y posan para los demás 

usuarios de las distintas salas de chat en el Sitio Web A. La investigación también revela que, en 

muchos casos, los grupos de usuarios en el Sitio Web A trabajan juntos para coordinar 
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e, . S3 dio el permiso al FBI para asumir su identidad en los chats del Grupo de Skype. Una revisión 

de los chats históricos de Skype entre S3 y otros miembros del Grupo de Skype corroboró las 

declaraciones de S3 sobre la actividad relacionada con el grupo en el Sitio Web A y Sitio Web B. 

J os miembros del Grupo de Skype y sus víctimas 

12. La revisión de las conversaciones por Skype del grupo, que se recuperaron durante el examen forense 

de las computadoras de S3 y otros acusados, reveló numerosos ejemplos de cómo el Grupo de Skype 

coaccionaba a las adolescentes a participar en una conducta sexualmente explícita en el Sitio Web 

A. Uno de los contribuyentes constantes del chat del Grupo era la cuenta de Skype 

KUROHIGEXYONKO. Los miembros del Grupo de Skype se referían al usuario de esta cuenta 

como LUZ y/o DANNY en su chat de grupo. Por ejemplo, el 19 de abril de 2016, un miembro del 

grupo preguntó: "¿Quién es kurohige?" KUROHIGEXYONKO responde: "danny :P". DANNY, 

alias LUZ, alias KUROHIGEXYONKO, hizo numerosos comentarios a lo largo de los hilos del chat 

de grupo. 

13. Una de las niñas de las que habló DANNY era MV-13 (nacida en septiembre de 2001), una víctima 

identificada que reside en el Distrito Este de Michigan. MV-13 tenía 15 años cuando el grupo la 

convirtió en su objetivo. Un miembro del grupo la invitó al Sitio Web A utilizando un perfil falso en 

MyLOL.com, un sitio web de citas para adolescentes. El grupo se burló sus "bragas de abuelita" y 

describió el aspecto de la niña. También hablaron de cómo cada chica con su mismo nombre había 

sido un "triunfo" para ellos. También hablaron sobre que estaba "castigada" y solo podía utilizar una 

cámara web en la casa de su padre. DANNY hizo numerosos comentarios acerca de MV-13. Le 

preguntó al grupo si habían hecho el "lazo" con ella e indicó que iba a hacer el "lazo" para tratar de 

persuadirla a participar en actividad sexual. También le dijo al grupo: "díganle que se vaya a la cama 

y enseñe la chocha", y les dijo: "pídanle el culo también, por favor". El grupo, DANNY incluido, 

continuó hablando 
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sobre y cómo captar a MV-13 durante varios meses. En un momento dado, compartieron un video de 

pornografía infantil entre ellos de MV-13 que uno de ellos había grabado después de que la 

persuadieran a participar en actividades sexuales en el Sitio Web A. Los inicios de sesión de la niña 

en el Sitio Web A son hasta 2017. 

14. Otra niña de la que habló Danny fue MV-25 (nacida en septiembre de 2004). MV-25 tenía 12 años 

en enero de 2017. DANNY habló de MV-25 en la regadera con un amigo en el Sitio Web A y lo 

anunció al grupo. También les dijo a los otros miembros del grupo que pensaba que tenía 13 años de 

edad. Les advirtió que no entraran en su sala de chat y "arruinaran" su baño en la regadera con su 

amigo. 

15. El FBI analizó los registros del Sitio Web A y determinó que un usuario iniciaba sesión de manera 

constante en las salas de chat del Grupo de Skype desde Chile. Además, los registros del Sitio Web 

B indicaban que un usuario identificado como DANNY iniciaba sesión de manera constante y 

charlaba con menores. 

Órdenes de registro de residencias, aprehensiones y declaraciones de los miembros del Grupo de  
Skvne 

16. Sobre la base de las pruebas detalladas anteriormente, una orden de registro de la cuenta de Skype 

KUROITIGEXYONKO asociada con DANNY, alias LUZ, produjo materiales adaptativos, 

incluyendo los chats y los archivos enviados y recibidos de la cuenta de Skype entre el 2 de 

septiembre de 2017 y el 25 de enero de 2018. El análisis del FBI de las conversaciones entre esta 

cuenta y otras determinó que el propósito principal de sus conversaciones era reclutar a niñas 

menores de edad para participar en la actividad sexual ante la cámara web. 

17. Los miembros del Grupo de Skype hablaban sobre la captación de niñas y conseguir que participaran 

en la actividad sexual. Compartían videos explícitos entre ellos utilizando MegaNz, un sitio web de 

intercambio de archivos con sede en Nueva Zelanda. Por ejemplo, el 30 de septiembre de 2017, los 

miembros discutieron la importancia de los "lazos". Un miembro dijo que una niña solo se 

masturbaba una vez ante una pantalla en negro. DANNY no estuvo de acuerdo. DANNY le contestó: 

"pregúntese por qué annie o bailey estaban ansiosas por usted 
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y usted simplemente dejaba la pantalla en negro". Y, el 1 de octubre de 2017, DANNY dijo: "pero 

consiga que ella use el cabezal de la regadera en la chocha :3". El 6 de octubre de 2017, un miembro 

del grupo pidió a DANNY "el show de C de 20140826" y más específicamente un clip de 

"u10_1408482868067". DANNY proporcionó una vista en miniatura de las imágenes de un video 

que mostraba a una víctima menor de edad identificada como MV-18 (nacida en abril de 2001) 

desnudarse y exhibir sus genitales ante la cámara web con solo una tanga puesta como ropa interior. 

Le preguntó a este miembro del grupo si este era el video correcto. Más tarde envió al miembro del 

grupo un enlace al archivo de video almacenado en el sitio web MegaNZ. Este video corresponde a 

la definición de pornografía infantil en conformidad con la legislación estadounidense. He revisado 

tanto los chats como las imágenes proporcionadas en respuesta a la orden de registro. 

Aproximadamente 70 de las imágenes cumplen con la definición federal de pornografía infantil en 

los Estados Unidos. 

18. Los chats de Skype también revelaron que DANNY, alias LUZ (cuenta de Skype 

KUROHIGEXYONKO), vive en Chile. DANNY habló de ser un estudiante en Chile y, el 21 de 

diciembre de 2017, también habló sobre conseguir una pasantía en Equifax. 

Identificación de GIDI como DANNY. alias LUZ. del Gruno de Skype 

19. El 11 de julio de 2018, otro miembro del Grupo de Skype proporcionó voluntariamente información 

al FBI. Este acusado, en lo sucesivo, S4, y DANNY habían estado en comunicación entre sí desde 

aproximadamente finales de 2012 y principios de 2013 hasta recientemente en mayo de 2018. A lo 

largo de ese período de tiempo, S4 y DANNY trabajaron juntos, y con otros miembros del Grupo de 

Skype, para explotar sexualmente a las niñas. S4 explicó que alrededor de abril de 2017, él y otros 

miembros del Grupo de Skype comenzaron a usar Snapchat para reclutar y persuadir a menores de 

edad. Hicieron su propio y más pequeño hilo de chat en Skype para coordinar sus actividades. 

También comenzaron a trabajar con algunos otros usuarios. Este nuevo 
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grupo incluía a VIVI, BENN y DANNY, todos los cuales eran parte del antiguo grupo. Por lo general 

les enviaban a las menores por medio de Snapchat enlaces al sitio web Appear.in, donde intentaban 

conseguir que se desnudaran y se masturbaran ante la cámara web. 

20. S4 calculó que, entre mayo de 2017 y mayo de 2018, el grupo había persuadido con éxito al menos a 

20 niñas entre las edades de II a 15 años de edad para participar en actividades sexuales ante la 

cámara web. S4 sabía que DANNY residía en Chile y que era un estudiante. También declaró que 

sabía que DANNY tenía aproximadamente 28 años de edad porque S4 sabía que DANNY tenía 19 

en 2009. S4 envió a DANNY $25 en moneda de los Estados Unidos a través de PayPal poco antes de 

la detención de S4. 

21. El FBI encontró pruebas de la transacción de PayPal entre DANNY y S4. Fue la única transacción 

de PayPal de la cuenta de S4 en 2018; fue en la cantidad de $25 en moneda de los Estados Unidos a 

un Jean Bravo GIDI. El correo electrónico asociado a la cuenta era  jdanibg@gmail.com. Registros de 

Google establecieron que el suscriptor de este correo electrónico era Jean Daniel Bravo GIDI. Los 

registros de Google mostraron además una cuenta de recuperación de correo electrónico de GIDI 

como idanibg4hotmail.com. Facebook recibió una citación judicial para dar la información del 

suscriptor de las cuentas asociadas con las direcciones de correo electrónico  idanibg (- smail.com  y 

iclanibg(4otinail.com. No había ninguna cuenta asociada con la cuenta de Gmail. Sin embargo, el 6 

de septiembre de 2018, Facebook proporcionó información de que la cuenta asociada a la dirección 

de Hotmail tenía una identificación de cuenta 655165975 y estaba asociada con GIDI. Jean Dani 

Bravo GIDI tenía un perfil visible públicamente en beBee.com. El perfil le lista como un estudiante 

de marketing de Duoc UC en Chile. También aparecía su empleo actual en Equifax. 

22. La información con respecto GIDI detallada anteriormente se proporcionó a las autoridades del orden 

público chilenas. El 20 de octubre de 2018, en base a esta información, identificaron al sospechoso 

como Jean-Daniel Bravo Gidi, fecha de nacimiento 26 de junio de 1991, número de identificación 

nacional 17.837.407-9. La 

7 



411_ 	fotografía de GIDI en la base de datos nacional de identificación coincide con el individuo 

representado en la identificación de cuenta 655165975 de Facebook. Las autoridades del orden 

público chilenas identificaron una cuenta de redes sociales adicional de GIDI en la que aparece su 

fotografía, y confirmaron que había asistido a la universidad en Duoc UC. 

23. El 29 de noviembre de 2018, volé a Chile para ayudar a las autoridades del orden público chilenas 

en la ejecución de una orden de registro en el domicilio, en Chile, asociado con GIDI. Las 

autoridades del orden público chilenas se enteraron de este domicilio a través del empleador de 

GIDI, Equifax. Observé a las autoridades del orden público chilenas ejecutar la orden de registro, 

con la recuperación de numerosos dispositivos electrónicos. GIDI estaba presente en el domicilio. 

24. GIDI hizo varias admisiones a los agentes del orden público en el momento del registro, 

incluyendo: 

• Dijo que participó en un grupo de Skype y utilizó varias cuentas para intercambiar 

pornografía infantil; 

• Mencionó los miembros del grupo BENN y VIVI, entre otros; 

• Dijo que el grupo comparte archivos en MegaNz; 

• Admitió que se hizo pasar por un menor de edad para persuadir a las niñas a participar en la 
actividad sexual y que las grabó haciéndolo; 

• Dijo que mostraba pornografia infantil a menores de edad; 

• Dijo que grabó actos específicamente de masturbación; 

• Enumeró otra casa donde guardaba los dispositivos con pornografía infantil; 

• Dijo que usaba videos de niñas entre las edades de 11 y 14 años y se hacía pasar por esas 
niñas. 

25. Los dispositivos de Gidi han sido fotografiados, y he comenzado el examen forense de ellos. Hasta 

el momento, han sido recuperadas más de 1,500 imágenes y/o videos de pornografia infantil, algunos 

de niñas menores de 12 años. Hay archivos de pornografía infantil, incluyendo los de MV-13. Hay 

un video de MV-25 en la regadera que se corresponde con los comentarios de GIDI sobre ella en ese 

día. 
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III. JDENTIFICACIÓN 

26. Jean-Daniel Bravo GIDI, alias Danny, Luz, y Kurohigexyonko, es un ciudadano de Chile, nacido el 

26 de junio de 1991 en Chile. Su número de identificación nacional chileno es 17,837,407-9. 

27. Adjunta a la presente declaración jurada como Anexo 1 hay una fotografía de Jean-Daniel Bravo 

GIDI. Yo estuve presente durante la ejecución de una orden de registro en su domicilio en Chile y lo 

observé en ese momento y sé que es el mismo individuo representado en la cuenta de Facebook y en 

el documento nacional de identidad en el Anexo 1. Entrevisté a GIDI y admitió ante mí y otros agentes 

del orden público presentes que él es la misma persona que participó en la conducta descrita 

anteriormente. 

firma 

Adam Christensen 
Agente especial 
Buró Federal de Investigaciones 

JURADO Y FIRMADO ANTE MÍ 
ESTE día 3 de abril de 2019 

firma 

HON. R. Steven Whalen 
Magistrado Juez de los Estados Unidos 
Distrito Este de Michigan 
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